
 

AGENDA 
2022 Measure T Renewal Investment Plan 

Steering Committee 
Date:  January 20, 2022 / Time:  1:30 - 3:30 P.M. / Place:  Zoom Meeting 

 
You are strongly encouraged to participate by joining the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone. 

Public Participants must register in advance to participate using the following link: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_N070O3ATRgSbpmBktK4_Sw 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar 

 

 

Item #  Description Action/Presenter 

I. 
Introductions & December 16, 2021 
Meeting Minutes 

Informational/Approval – Co-Chairs Poythress 
and Frazier 

II. 

Measure T Investment Plan 
Goals/Objectives and Transportation 
System Priorities  

Consider and Take Action - G. Vivian & R. 
Willems, VRPA Technologies 

III. Measure Renewal Duration Alternatives 
Approval – P. Taylor, G. Vivian, C. Heath 

IV. Measure T Renewal Programs 
Discussion- G. Vivian, VRPA Technologies 

IV. Public Engagement Status/Update 

Informational - C. Heath & A. Wara-Macapinlac, 
TBWBH Props & Measures 

V. Next Steps:     

a. Staff Items 
Informational – P. Taylor, MCTA, G. Vivian, VRPA 
Technologies 

b. Renewal Schedule 
Informational – G. Vivian, VRPA & P. Taylor, 
MCTA 

          c.  Next Meeting Date – TBD  Informational - Co-Chairs  
VI. Public Comment Informational - Co-Chairs  

Important Notice Regarding COVID 19: 

This Steering Committee meeting will take place remotely in accordance with Government Code Section 54953(e) 
et seq. (AB 361), and Resolution No. 21-15 Amendment No. 3, as adopted by the Madera County Transportation 
Commission Policy Board on December 22, 2021. The meeting will be conducted via teleconference using the Zoom 
platform. In the interest of maintaining appropriate social distancing measures, members of the public may 
participate in the meeting electronically and shall have the right to observe and offer public comment during the 
meeting. 

If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item during the meeting, please use the “Raise Hand” feature 
in Zoom and you will be called on by the chair during the meeting. If you are participating via telephone only, please 
dial *9 to raise your hand and use *6 to unmute yourself once called upon.  You can also submit your comments via 
email to publiccomment@maderactc.org or by calling 559-675-0721 Ext. 7. Comments will be shared with the 
Steering Committee and placed into the record at the meeting. Every effort will be made to read comments received 
during the meeting into the record, but some comments may not be read due to time limitations. Comments 
received after an agenda item will be made part of the record if received prior to the end of the meeting.  

2001 Howard Road, Suite 201 
Madera, CA 93637 / (559) 675-0721  

www.maderactc.org 



 

 

2001 Howard Road, Suite 201 
Madera, CA 93637 / (559) 675-0721 

www.maderactc.org 
 

Regarding any disruption that prevents the Steering Committee from broadcasting the meeting to members of the 
public, then (1) if public access can be restored quickly, the meeting will resume in five (5) minutes to allow re-
connection of all members of the Committee and members of the public; or (2) if service cannot be restored quickly, 
the meeting shall stop, no further action shall be taken on the remaining agenda items and notice of the continued 
meeting will be provided. 



 

 
 

 

Meeting Minutes 
2022 Measure T Renewal Investment Plan 

Steering Committee Meeting #4 
Date:  December 16, 2021 

Time: 2:00 – 4:00 P.M. 
Place:  Zoom Meeting 

 
IN ATTENDANCE:  
 
Steering Committee Members: Supervisor Robert Poythress (Co-Chair), Madera County Board of 
Supervisors; Supervisor Brett Frazier (Co-Chair), Madera County Board of Supervisors; Conrad Gaunt, 
Active Transportation Advocate; Geoffrey Wheeler, Active Transportation Advocate; Michael Prandini, 
Building Industry Association of Fresno and Madera Counties; Matt Watson, Cal Fire; Michael Navarro, 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans); Nichole Mosqueda, Camarena Health Center; Paulo 
Soares, Camarena Health Center; Derek Robinson, Community Advocate; Council Member Diana Palmer, 
City of Chowchilla; Rod Pruett, City of Chowchilla; Jason Rogers, City of Chowchilla; Ellen Bitter, City of 
Madera; Keith Helmuth, City of Madera; David Huff, City of Madera; Arnoldo Rodriguez, City of Madera; 
Council Member Jose Rodriguez, City of Madera; Sara Bosse, County of Madera; Jared Carter, County of 
Madera; Matt Treber, County of Madera; Jay Varney, County of Madera; Davinder Mahil, Creekside 
Farming; Madeline Harris, Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability; Debi Bray, Madera Chamber 
of Commerce; Bobby Kahn, Madera County Economic Development Commission (EDC), Christina 
Beckstead, Madera County Farm Bureau; Patricia Taylor, Madera County Transportation 
Commission/Madera County Transportation Authority (MCTC/MCTA); John Reed, MVP Realty; Paul 
Herman, San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission; Frank Simonis, Social Service Transportation Advisory 
Council (SSTAC); Tim Curley, Valley Children’s Hospital 
 
Members of the Public: Leticia Casillas Luquin, Andy Russell 
 
Madera County Transportation Commission/Madera County Transportation Authority Staff and 
Consultants: Troy McNeil, MCTC/MCTA; Dylan Stone, MCTC/MCTA; Jeff Findley, MCTC/MCTA; Sandy 
Ebersole, MCTC/MCTA; Georgiena Vivian, VRPA Technologies, Inc. (VRPA); Rose Willems, VRPA; Richard 
Lee, VRPA; Dena Graham, VRPA; Hector Guerra, VRPA; Charles Heath, TBWBH Props & Measures; Alex 
Wara-Macapinlac, TBWBH Props & Measures; Ellen Moy, Moy & Associates 
 

I. Introductions and November 18, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
Supervisor Robert Poythress started the meeting and introduced Hector Guerra, VRPA, to review 
meeting protocols.. Dena Graham, VRPA, was later introduced to take roll call. 
 
Supervisor Poythress then asked the group if there were any needed corrections to the meeting 
minutes. There were none. A motion to approve the meeting minutes was made by Bobby Kahn, 



MT3 Steering Committee 
December 16, 2021 
Page 2 of 8 
 

 

Madera County EDC, and seconded by Jason Rogers, City of Chowchilla. Supervisor Poythress asked if 
there were any objections.  
 
Geoffrey Wheeler, Active Transportation Advocate, said that at the last meeting Madeline Harris 
talked about induced demand, and that it was his understanding that Caltrans responded that they 
did not expect induced demand. Mr. Wheeler asked that the minutes reflect a concern that projects 
that move forward do not induce demand. Ms. Vivian said that staff will go back and check the 
previous meeting recording, and make sure that the appropriate information is reflected in the 
minutes.  
 
Motion approved by consensus. 
 

II. Overview – Federal Infrastructure Bill 
 
Patricia Taylor, MCTC/MCTA, provided a review of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) and its 
relationship to Measure T. The presentation included discussion on the guaranteed formula 
transportation funding that California is expected to receive, new transportation discretionary grant 
programs, and increased funding for the existing discretionary grant program between FY 2022-2026, 
what this means for MCTC and the Madera County region, and what is next.  
 
Frank Simonis, SSTAC, asked if there was a way to determine the funding that Madera County could 
potentially receive. Ms. Taylor said that staff would be looking into this once all the information 
becomes available, and that she would be participating in an upcoming call with the State to further 
discuss this item. 
 
Tim Curley, Valley Children’s Hospital, wanted to know more about the Regional Transportation Plan, 
particularly the funding opportunities that are identified. Ms. Taylor said that MCTC is in the process 
of updating the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS) and 
confirmed that the RTP/SCS identifies all funding sources, and that the RTP/SCS also contains a 
financially constrained list of projects. Dylan Stone, MCTC/MCTA, added that the adopted 2018 
RTP/SCS is available on the MCTC website, along with supporting technical documentation. 
 
John Reed, MVP Realty, asked if it would be possible to identify which funding sources specifically 
require matching or leveraged funds. Ms. Taylor said that staff will be able to identify which new 
programs require matching funds, and that this would be dependent on the guidance packages and 
the guidelines that are developed.  
 
Ms. Harris thought that the development of an investment plan for Measure T should include 
community engagement from the community and should be focused on the investments that 
community members want to see Measure T fund, and not just developing the investment plan based 
on existing County priorities. Ms. Taylor said that the public will be engaged as the Measure T Renewal 
is developed, and that later in the meeting there will be additional discussion on public outreach 
activities for the Measure T Renewal.  



MT3 Steering Committee 
December 16, 2021 
Page 3 of 8 
 

 

 
Council Member Jose Rodriguez, City of Madera, said that one of the bullet points in Ms. Taylor’s 
presentation made mention of a permanent fix to the Highway Trust Fund, and wanted to see if there 
could be some elaboration on this item. Ms. Taylor said that the Highway Trust Fund has been in a 
deficit for many years and has had to be backfilled. Ms. Taylor said that the cause of this deficit goes 
back to the federal gas tax, and how this tax has not increased since the early 1990s.  
 

III. Measure T Renewal Plan Goals/Objectives and Transportation System Priorities 
Ms. Vivian explained that to assist with the identification of Programs, which will be included in the 
Measure T Renewal, it would be important to understand the Goals and Objectives, and the 
Transportation System Priorities that should be accomplished with the Measure T Renewal.  
 
Rose Willems, VRPA, then gave an overview of the process undertaken to collect Transportation 
System Priorities from Steering Committee members. Ms. Willems added that a matrix of Steering 
Committee members’ Transportation System Priorities has been developed, with the goal that each 
sector is reflected. Ms. Willems said that any Steering Committee members who have not yet 
provided their input can email their priorities information to her, and the information will be added 
to the matrix. 
 
Measure T Renewal Plan Goals and Objectives 
Ms. Vivian provided an overview of the Draft Measure T Renewal Plan Goals and Objectives. 
 
Christina Beckstead, Madera County Farm Bureau, had previously asked about studies being done to 
determine how many people are using public transportation in Madera County, and wanted to see if 
this is a viable use of funds or if transit services are not being adequately utilized. Ms. Vivian said that 
the City of Madera is in the process of updating its Transit Plan and should have preliminary 
information on ridership in the near future.  
 
Ms. Beckstead also said that before the Steering Committee commenced there were individual 
meetings with many Steering Committee members to discuss their priorities and wanted to confirm 
that input received at these meetings was also considered. Ms. Vivian said that staff has taken into 
consideration information received during the stakeholder interview process, Steering Committee 
meetings, and information received during the public engagement process.  
 
Mr. Simonis asked if Special Road Districts will be included in the funding priorities. Jared Carter, 
County of Madera, said that there is Special Road District money in Measure T right now. Mr. Carter 
said that there is a component of Measure T that is for maintenance districts, and from the County’s 
perspective this money goes towards matching funds in the Special Road Districts. Mr. Simonis said 
that there is $400,000 available per year to be used for maintenance and vegetation mitigation in the 
Special Road Districts. Mr. Simonis added that the money has not increased as the years have gone 
by and wanted to know if increasing this amount will be addressed because it has been 16 years since 
it has been adjusted. Ms. Vivian said that one of the next steps is to identify the Measure T Renewal 
Programs, and at that point there will be discussion on the allocation of funding to Programs, such as 



MT3 Steering Committee 
December 16, 2021 
Page 4 of 8 
 

 

maintenance. Ms. Vivian also said that implementing guidelines will be looked at as part of the 
Measure T Renewal process, and that these guidelines can specify whether there needs to be an 
increase annually.  
 
Ms. Harris thought that one of the items missing from the Goals and Objectives is the right for all 
people to have a healthy environment and healthy air quality regardless of race, income, national 
origin, age, location, physical ability, or any other factor. Ms. Harris felt that it would make sense to 
add this item to the Vibrant communities that are supported by sustainable transportation systems 
goal. 
 
Sara Bosse, County of Madera, said that there was not specific language around reducing traffic 
congestion, and air quality was not called out as part of the Multimodal transportation systems that 
are fully accessible, encourage quality and sustainable growth and development, support the region’s 
environmental resource management strategies, and are responsive to the needs of current and future 
travelers’ goal. Ms. Bosse also said that infrastructure for electric vehicles was missing from the Goals 
and Objectives. 
 
Derek Robinson, Community Advocate, thought that a roundabout was needed at Raymond Road and 
Avenue 16, because traffic can get backed up on Raymond Road as vehicles attempt to make the turn 
onto Avenue 16. Ms. Vivian said that roundabouts could be called out in the Transportation System 
Priorities. Mr. Robinson also said that the streets where the City and the County meet are heavily 
used, but often times not well maintained. 
 
Conrad Gaunt, Active Transportation Advocate, said that it would be great if the shoulders can also 
be repaved anytime a road is repaved, so that cyclists can utilize the shoulders and not be out in the 
roadway. Mr. Gaunt identified Avenue 25, from Road 13 to the Merced County line, as a location that 
has a great shoulder for cyclists.  
 
Mr. Reed thought that safety deserved a higher priority in the Goals and Objectives, especially in 
correcting existing roadways with poor design and conditions. Mr. Vivian said that staff will look to 
emphasize safety to a greater extent, where appropriate. 
 
Measure T Renewal Plan Transportation System Priorities 
Ms. Vivian said that the Measure T Renewal Plan Transportation System Priorities were developed 
based on input received from Steering Committee members, as well as input received from the 
stakeholder interviews, voter poll, and other related public engagement to date. Ms. Vivian then 
provided an overview of the Measure T Renewal Plan Transportation System Priorities.  
 
Mr. Robinson thought that motorized/electric bikes could be an affordable mode of transportation 
and could also allow for employment opportunities for those who transport others, similar to what is 
done overseas. Ms. Vivian said that agencies are looking at opportunities to fund electric bikes and 
scooters, and that this item is on the horizon. 
 



MT3 Steering Committee 
December 16, 2021 
Page 5 of 8 
 

 

Jason Rogers, City of Chowchilla, said that the City currently receives about 7% of Measure T funding, 
which generally means that the City cannot do a project every year. Mr. Rogers added that if funding 
is still tied to population size, then this could potentially reduce the City of Chowchilla’s funding 
allocation. If you then have funding that ends up being too specifically tied to an objective, it will take 
that much longer the City to do a project. Ms. Vivian said that based on feedback received from the 
Steering Committee, staff will develop an initial list of Measure T Renewal Programs that the Steering 
Committee can review and revise. Ms. Vivian said that one of the things that will be taken into 
consideration is flexibility, understanding that Madera County is a smaller rural County, and that 
funding availability is not as prevalent as with some of the larger Counties where it is easier to fund 
projects on an annual basis.  
 
Mr. Simonis wanted to make sure that public-private partnerships would be looked at for 
transportation, specifically for those in the mountains who need to go into the Cities for various 
services. Mr. Simonis also wants to see flexibility with Measure T funds so that people are not stuck 
with how to use funds but can be flexible with how to address needs as they arise. 
 
Ms. Harris said that one of the first things that was discussed in the Goals and Objectives was the 
importance of equity in transportation investments, but was not really seeing anything in the 
Transportation System Priorities where it is clear how equity would be prioritized. Ms. Harris thought 
that two key areas for ensuring that equity is prioritized would be incorporating an equity component 
into the pavement management system, and for clean mobility and active transportation type 
projects. Ms. Harris was also uncomfortable with how often widening and goods movement was 
mentioned in the Transportation System Priorities, and that one of the things that is heard from 
residents in communities such as La Vina and Fairmead is immense frustration over seeing their local 
roads get damaged by goods movement. Ms. Harris was also concerned that connectivity between 
rural communities and urban areas is currently grouped with Goods Movement and felt it should be 
among public transit and local roads priorities. Ms. Harris also said that zero emission and clean 
mobility projects have to receive a higher percentage than projects that would facilitate automobile 
and heavy-duty truck use.  
 
Mr. Robinson said that he would like to see more city connectivity between places such as Oakhurst, 
Raymond, Coarsegold, Chowchilla, and the Madera Ranchos. Mr. Robinson said that some people 
cannot get around as easily, and if there was transit that could go to these locations it would help 
people travel more. 
 
Mr. Reed commented that project specificity can be a double-edged sword. Mr. Reed felt that there 
will be specific projects that the average voter will be able to relate to very closely, and these projects 
may be what they are going to vote for. On the other side of the coin, some of the opposition that Mr. 
Reed has heard is the belief that the original Measure did not follow through and produce some of 
the projects or outcomes that were promised. Mr. Reed felt that the Measure T Renewal would need 
to be approached carefully from a marketing standpoint in order to pass.  
 



MT3 Steering Committee 
December 16, 2021 
Page 6 of 8 
 

 

Arnoldo Rodriguez, City of Madera, believed that there would need be an identification of several 
attractive projects to help entice voters. Mr. Rodriguez also felt that funds from the first few years of 
the Measure T Renewal should go towards mitigating existing challenges, and that new development 
should not cause transportation system deficiencies since they should be already mitigating any issues 
that they are causing.  
 
Ms. Bosse said that it would be good to include in the language, funding flexibility towards grant 
writing that would help reduce traffic. Ms. Bosse also mentioned broadband funding that is going to 
roll out from the State, and how this will help facilitate more telework activity, and potentially reduce 
the cost of maintaining the roads that we already have.  
 

IV. Measure Renewal Duration Alternatives 
Ms. Vivian said that the three (3) Measure T Renewal duration alternatives are 20-year, 30-year, or 
until ended by voters. Ms. Vivian then reviewed the estimated revenue that the alternatives are 
projected to generate. Mr. Troy McNeil, MCTC/MCTA, added that in developing the alternatives 
funding projections, reasonable assumptions were made based upon historical averages. Ms. Vivian 
said that staff would like the Steering Committee to make a recommendation to the MCTA on the 
Measure T Renewal duration. 
 
Ms. Harris asked how the duration of the sales tax polling question was worded. Charles Heath, 
TBWBH Props & Measures, said that a split sample poll was conducted among a representative sample 
of voters likely to participate in the November 2022 election. When voters were asked a sample ballot 
question that would actually appear on the ballot, a random half of these likely voters received 
language that said that the Measure would automatically expire in 20 years, while the other half 
received language that said that the Measure would expire only when ended by voters. Mr. Heath 
said that it was consistently seen throughout the polling that support among the half that received 
the until ended by voters language was about 2 to 4 percentage points higher than the half that 
received the 20-year duration language. Mr. Heath added that the polling also replicated the 
campaign environment by testing arguments in favor/against the Measure. One of the arguments 
tested was that this Measure does not include a sunset date, and of all the negative arguments against 
the Measure that were tested, this argument was the least compelling to voters. Ms. Harris asked if 
the sample ballot language could be shared. Mr. Heath mentioned that this information was shared 
at the first Steering Committee meeting and could be forwarded to Ms. Harris. 
 
Ellen Bitter, City of Madera, asked if the until ended by voters alternative could end up being sooner 
than 20 years. Mr. Heath said that for any tax measure that is passed, citizens will always have the 
right to the initiative process to repeal the tax. Mr. Heath added that a repeal is a significant process 
and requires collecting enough signatures to qualify for the ballot. Mr. Health said that it is the 
experience of public agencies who have Measures in place that it takes quite a bit of controversy 
before citizens decide to repeal a Measure. 
 
Mr. Arnoldo Rodriguez asked Mr. Heath if the polling asked about a ½ cent sales tax Measure, or a 
sales tax Measure in general. Mr. Heath said that it asked about extending the existing ½ cent sales 



MT3 Steering Committee 
December 16, 2021 
Page 7 of 8 
 

 

tax Measure. Mr. Rodriguez wondered if a ½ cent sales tax or an increase to the existing sales tax 
would be appropriate. Mr. Heath said that the polling did not contemplate an increase on the tax rate. 
Mr. Heath explained that the focus of the polling was on extending the existing tax rate, and the 
support levels were north of 70% for this approach. Mr. Heath added that he would be surprised if 
there was similar support for increasing the tax rate, but that this has not been investigated 
specifically. 
 
Ms. Harris was concerned about an until ended by voters alternative because it would be unfair for 
Madera County voters to get stuck with an Expenditure Plan that is created in 2021, especially since 
a lot of things can change. Ms. Harris also said that it was a little unclear what the process would be 
for voters to to alter the Expenditure Plan without completely creating a ballot referendum to end 
the tax. Ms. Vivian said that there will likely be check in points in the Measure implementing 
guidelines, where the entire Expenditure Plan will be revisited to ensure that it is still addressing the 
needs of the County.  
 
Ms. Beckstead said that implementing a sales tax indefinitely and waiting for voter approval to come 
back to eliminate the tax is very concerning. Ms. Beckstead said that things change over the years 
from a government standpoint, and a sales tax should not be implemented indefinitely without 
creating a system of checks and balances, which can be accomplished by setting a term for that sales 
tax. Ms. Beckstead suggested that Measure T Renewal be kept at a 20-year term.  
 
Ms. Beckstead agreed with earlier comments on the need to make our communities better and added 
that with all the new development taking place in Madera County, we need to leverage the funding 
of those developments against State and federal funds to get improvements.  
 
Mr. Curley felt that the Measure T Renewal duration alternatives needed to be discussed a little bit 
more and suggested that this item be tabled, and a decision be made at the next meeting. Mr. Curley 
added that he is not confident that the community will in the end support a tax measure that has no 
end to it, and that it would be helpful to see a set of pros and cons for each of three (3) duration 
alternatives. Supervisor Poythress agreed to give the Steering Committee more time to consider the 
duration alternatives, and that this item will be revisited at the next meeting. 
 

V. Public Engagement Status/Update 
Mr. Heath provided an update on the public outreach accomplishments to date, which included  
stakeholder interviews to help form the Steering Committee membership, distribution of online 
surveys to stakeholders who are not Steering Committee members, development of Measure T 
renewal branding and outreach materials, development of messaging on Measure T accomplishments 
and messaging related to the proposed Measure T Renewal, and MCTC website messaging related to 
Measure T accomplishments and planning for a Measure Renewal.  
 
Alex Wara-Macapinlac, TBWBH Props & Measures, then shared with the Steering Committee 
messaging materials that highlight what Measure T has accomplished. These messaging materials 



MT3 Steering Committee 
December 16, 2021 
Page 8 of 8 
 

 

included a highly graphical transportation improvements map, frequently asked questions (FAQ) 
sheet, talking points, and a fact sheet. 
 
Mr. Heath then discussed planned upcoming public outreach activities, which included social media 
posts, direct mail, information video, and other outreach strategies to reach the community. The 
public outreach team will also develop an email database for regular updates, will conduct meetings 
with key stakeholders and opinion leaders after development of the draft investment plan, and will 
provide Steering Committee members and their organizations with a social media toolkit, Measure T 
accomplishments map, informational video, and other outreach materials. 
 
Ms. Harris requested that there be sections added to the FAQ and talking points sheets that ask for 
feedback on the funding allocations percentages, and if the Measure T Renewal should be in place 
until under by voters, for 30 years, or for 20 years. Ms. Harris also asked who the key stakeholders 
and opinion leaders are, and if there are plans to conduct direct outreach in disadvantaged and 
unincorporated communities. Mr. Heath said that groups representing disadvantaged and 
unincorporated communities have been part of the outreach strategy, and that the comprehensive 
list of groups that are being engaged during the outreach process can be shared.  
 
Mr. Reed asked if the social media posts, direct mail, information video, and other outreach strategies 
to reach the community would be initially generic in nature since the Steering Committee is still 
working through a lot of the details for the Measure T Renewal. Mr. Reed also asked if the Steering 
Committee would have an opportunity to review these outreach pieces before that are distributed. 
Mr. Heath said that these outreach pieces will be shared with the Steering Committee, and that the 
public outreach team is being careful so that the messaging does not get ahead of the work that the 
Steering Committee is doing. Mr. Heath added that the initial messaging will be focused on what 
Measure T has accomplished since 2006.  
 

VI. Next Steps 
 
a. Staff Items 

There were none. 
 

b. Renewal Schedule/Steering Committee Vacancy 
Ms. Vivian reviewed the future meetings schedule and previewed what would be discussed at 
upcoming Steering Committee meetings. 
 

c. Next Meeting Date 
The next meeting date is Thursday, January 20, 2022, at 1:30 PM. 

 
VII. Public Comments 

There were none. 



1 
 

2022 Measure T Sales Tax Investment Plan 
Issues Related to the “Until Ended By Voters” Sales Tax Duration Alternative 

 
 Pros and Cons of until ended by voters 

 
Pros: 
A Measure that does not sunset would/could: 
1. Give voters the responsibility to end the tax if no longer needed or if they believe the funds 

are not being expended as promised  
2. Remain in perpetuity until voters repeal it 
3. Provide a secure source of funding for local transportation improvements 
4. Allow for the development of a more flexible Investment Plan with on-going funding vs a 

specific period of time (20 or more years)  
 
Cons: 
A Measure that does not sunset could: 
1. Give the perception of a potential lack of control and accountability without measures in 

place.  
2. Lack appropriate checks and balances if the Investment Plan is not updated at specific 

intervals to ensure that local needs are being met 
 

 What other counties have “until ended by voters” measures? 
 
Most recently, the Metropolitan Transportation Authority in Los Angeles (Metro) passed a ½ cent 
sales tax until ended by voters in 2016.  LA Metro’s Measure M ordinance, which continues until 
ended by voters is attached.  Section 11 addresses amendment procedures.  BART (San Francisco, 
Alameda and Contra Costa) also has a permanent transportation sales tax that was adopted in the 
1970s. Currently several counties including Riverside and Fresno are contemplating different 
duration options, including until ended by voters, as they plan potential renewal measures for 
upcoming ballots. 
 
Many cities in recent years have passed local sales tax measures with durations lasting until ended 
by voters. This includes the City of Madera that passed a local sales tax for public safety services 
in November 2016 with over 80% support that lasts until ended by voters. Other nearby Valley 
cities that have passed similar measures are Fowler, Kerman, Parlier and Reedley in Fresno County 
as well as the City of Turlock in Stanislaus County.  
 

 What if the voters end the measure when a project is not fully completed?   
 
We would definitely need to check with legal counsel to determine the specific requirements but 
here are some suggested safeguards that would be written into the Measure Investment Plan to 
secure enough funding to finish a project: 
 
1. If an agency issued debt to finance projects in the short-term, then the funding stream cannot 

be interrupted.  The collection of sales taxes would need to continue until the debt is paid in 
full 



2 
 

2. If a project has commenced through right of way (ROW) or other modal acquisition activity, 
then the project shall continue through the development and funding process through to 
construction or implementation 
 

 How easy is it to amend the measure to reflect current times if until ended by voters is 
recommended?  
 
There are several ways to ensure a measure with a duration of until ended by voters can adapt 
over time to meet changing needs: 

1. When planning a measure without a fixed sunset date, there is an incentive to construct the 
measure and the related investment plan more generally and flexibly to meet changing needs. 
For example, a shorter-term measure of 20 years can name specific projects and a finite set 
of transportation modes. However, an indefinite measure must focus on broader framework 
of goals that are not tied to discrete projects and allow for potential significant changes in 
transportation patterns in the future. Within this broad framework a governance structure 
can identify specific projects and make funding allocation decisions.  
 

2. Measures without a fixed sunset date also need an established process for amending or 
finetuning the investment plan over time. This type of process would empower a combination 
of representatives from the transportation authority along with representatives of impacted 
agencies such as the cities and the county to approve amendments to the investment plan. 
Amendments could require supermajority approval, or a weighted vote based on the 
population represented to ensure broad consensus support for any amendments. Given that 
amendments to the plan are virtually inevitable for an indefinite tax, a mechanism is needed 
to adapt the plan without having to hold an election for every change.  
 

3. If at some point a significant change to the investment plan or other terms of the measure 
does require voter approval, it is important to note that changes that do not impact the tax 
component of the measure can be approved with a simple majority vote rather than the two-
thirds majority needed to enact or extend the tax. This lower support threshold makes voter-
approved changes to the plan more feasible.  

 
 Can policies be written in the Investment Plan related to “until ended by voters?” 

 
Yes.  Policies similar to some of those noted above could be included in the Investment Plan 
depending on legal counsel opinion.  The Investment Plan could also be reviewed and updated at 
specific time intervals to ensure that local transportation needs in Madera County are addressed 
consistent with the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS).   



1

2

3

4

5

6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

Proposed Ordinance #16-01 

Measure M 

Los Angeles County Traffic Improvement Plan 

PREAMBLE 

Los Angeles County’s comprehensive plan to improve transportation and ease traffic 
congestion through the following core goals: 

Improve freeway traffic flow; reduce bottlenecks and ease traffic congestion. 

Expand the rail and rapid transit system; accelerate rail construction and build new rail lines; 
enhance local, regional, and express bus service; and improve system connectivity. 

Repave local streets, repair potholes, synchronize signals; improve neighborhood streets 
and intersections, and enhance bike and pedestrian connections. 

Keep the transit and highway system safe; earthquake-retrofit bridges, enhance freeway and 
transit system safety, and keep the transportation system in good working condition. 

Make public transportation more accessible, convenient, and affordable for seniors, 
students, and the disabled and provide better mobility options for our aging population. 

Embrace technology and innovation; incorporate modern technology, new advancements, 
and emerging innovations into the local transportation system. 

Create jobs, reduce pollution, and generate local economic benefits; increase personal 
quality time and overall quality of life. 

Provide accountability and transparency; protect and monitor the public’s investments 
through independent audits and oversight. 

SECTION 1. TITLE 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Los Angeles County Traffic 

Improvement Plan” (“Ordinance”). The Ordinance shall include Attachment A entitled 

“Expenditure Plan” and Attachment B entitled “Subregional Maps” which are attached hereto 

and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2. SUMMARY 

This Ordinance imposes a retail transactions and use tax at the rate of one-half of one 

percent (.5%) within Los Angeles County to be operative on the first day of the first calendar 

quarter commencing not less than 180 days after the adoption of this Ordinance by the voters. 

The rate of this tax shall increase to one percent (1.0%) on July 1, 2039 immediately upon the 

1 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

expiration of the .5% tax imposed by Ordinance No. 08-01 of the Los Angeles County 

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Measure R). 

SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS 

The following terms, whenever used in this Ordinance, shall have the meanings set forth below: 

“Active Transportation” means projects that encourage, promote, or facilitate 

environments that promote walking, bicycling, rolling modes, or transit use. 

“ADA Paratransit” means paratransit service for the disabled as provided for by the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.). 

“Board of Equalization” means the California State Board of Equalization. 

“Capital” means any project or program described in Attachment A that qualifies as a 

capital improvement expenditure. 

“Capital Improvement Expenditures” means expenditures for the purpose of acquiring, 

upgrading, or maintaining transportation physical assets such as property, transportation 

facilities, rail improvements, highways, or equipment, so long as any such expenditures for 

maintenance substantially extend the useful life of the project. This also includes any physical 

improvement and any preliminary studies, design, or surveys relative thereto, including, but 

not limited to, any property of a permanent nature and equipment needed in connection with 

such improvements. 

“Complete Streets” means a comprehensive, integrated transportation network with 

infrastructure and design that allows safe and convenient travel along and across streets for 

all users, including pedestrians, users and operators of public transit, bicyclists, persons with 

disabilities, seniors, children, motorists, users of green modes, and movers of commercial 

goods. 

“Expected Opening Date” means the date that a project is expected to be open for use 

by the public, which is expressed as the first year of a three-year range. With respect to 

programs, the expected opening date is the last year in which funds are anticipated to be 

made available for use on the projects that comprise the program. 

“Expenditure Plan” means that expenditure plan which is attached hereto as 

Attachment A. 

“First/Last Mile” means infrastructure, systems, and modes of travel used by transit 

riders to start or end their transit trips. This includes but is not limited to infrastructure for 

walking, rolling, and biking (e.g. bike lanes, bike parking, sidewalks, and crosswalks), shared 

use services (e.g. bike share and car share), facilities for making modal connections (e.g. kiss 

2 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

and ride and bus/rail interface), signage and way-finding, and information and technology that 

eases travel (e.g. information kiosks and mobile apps). 

“Green Streets” means urban transportation rights-of-way integrated with storm water 

treatment techniques that use natural processes and landscaping and quantitatively 

demonstrate that they capture and treat storm water runoff from their tributary watershed 

through infiltration or other means and are included within the respective Enhanced 

Watershed Management Plan. 

“Gross Sales Tax” means the amount of Sales Tax collected by the Board of 

Equalization pursuant to this Ordinance. 

“Groundbreaking Start Date” means the first year of a three-year period by which the 

applicable project sponsor is expected to award a construction contract enabling the 

beginning of construction. In alternative project delivery methods, such as design-build and 

public-private partnership contracts, it means the start of the actual construction phase or 

phases of the project. 

“Highway Construction” means a capital only project or program that includes all 

environmental, design, and construction work in public highway and street rights-of-way. This 

includes Complete Streets, Green Streets, and active transportation improvements such as 

bikeways and pedestrian improvements. 

“Interest” means interest and other earnings on cash balances. 

“Local Return” means funds returned to the cities within Los Angeles and Los Angeles 

County, based on population, for eligible transportation-related uses as defined by the Local 

Return Guidelines to be developed in coordination with such cities and Los Angeles County 

and adopted by the Metro Board of Directors. Funds will be eligible for communities’ 

transportation needs, including transit, streets and roads, storm drains, Green Streets, Active 

Transportation Projects, Complete Streets, public transit access to recreational facilities, 

Transit Oriented Community Investments, and other unmet transit needs. 

“Measure R” means Ordinance No. 08-01, including the attached expenditure plan, of 

the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority, as adopted by the Metro Board 

of Directors on July 24, 2008. 

“Measure R Projects” means those projects and programs identified in the expenditure 

plan attached to Ordinance No. 08-01. 

“Metro” means the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority or any 

successor entity. 

3 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

“Metro Rail Operations” means service delivery for operating and regular and 

preventative maintenance for Metro Rail Lines as defined in guidelines adopted by the Metro 

Board of Directors, as well as Metro State of Good Repair. 

“Metro State of Good Repair” means the repair, rehabilitation, and replacement 

required to maintain reliable, safe, effective, and efficient rail transit services. 

“Multi-Year Subregional Programs” means multiple capital projects defined by 

guidelines adopted pursuant to Section 7(c). 

“Net Revenues” means Sales Tax Revenues minus any amount expended on 

administrative costs pursuant to Section 10. 

“Regional Rail” means regional commuter rail service within Los Angeles County, 

including operating, maintenance, expansion, and state of good repair. 

“Sales Tax” means a retail transactions and use tax. 

“Sales Tax Revenues” means the Gross Sales Tax minus any refunds and any fees 

imposed by the Board of Equalization for the performance of functions incident to the 

administration and operation of this Ordinance. 

“Schedule of Funds Available” means the anticipated schedule for releasing funds to 

complete projects included in the Expenditure Plan. 

“Subregion” means “subregional planning area” as shown by the boundaries in 

“Subregional Maps” attached hereto as Attachment B. 

“Transit Construction” means a capital only project or program including 

environmental, design, and construction work in public transit rights-of-way or in support of the 

capital needs of the public transit system, such as rolling stock, transit stations, or transit stop 

improvements. Transit construction can also include first/last mile improvements. 

“Transit Operations” means countywide transit service operated by Metro and the 

Included and Eligible Municipal Operators receiving funds allocated through a Board-adopted 

Formula Allocation Procedure (FAP). 

SECTION 4. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

This Ordinance is enacted, in part, pursuant to: 

a. Part 1.6 (commencing with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the California 

Revenue and Taxation Code; and 

b. Division 12 (commencing with Section 130000) of the California Public Utilities 

Code. 

4 



5

10

15

20

25

30

1 SECTION 5. IMPOSITION OF RETAIL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX 

a. Subject to the limits imposed by this Ordinance, Metro hereby imposes, in the 

incorporated and unincorporated territory of Los Angeles County, a Transactions and Use tax 

at the rate of one-half of one percent (.5%) beginning on the first day of the first calendar 

quarter commencing not less than 180 days after the adoption of this Ordinance by the voters. 

The rate of this tax shall increase to one percent (1.0%) on July 1, 2039 immediately upon the 

expiration of the .5% tax imposed by Ordinance No. 08-01 of the Los Angeles County 

Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Measure R). 

b. This Transactions and Use tax shall be in addition to any other taxes 

authorized by law, including any existing or future state or local Transactions and Use tax. 

The imposition, administration, and collection of the tax shall be in accordance with all 

applicable statutes, laws, and rules and regulations prescribed and adopted by the Board of 

Equalization. 

c. Pursuant to Section 130350.7(h) of the Public Utilities Code, the tax rate 

authorized by this section shall not be considered for purposes of the combined rate limit 

established by Section 7251.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

d. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 7262.2 of the Revenue and Taxation 

Code, the required provisions of Sections 7261 and 7262 of that Code as now in effect or as 

later amended are adopted by reference in this Ordinance. 

e. This Ordinance incorporates provisions identical to those of the Sales and Use 

Tax Law of the State of California insofar as those provisions are not inconsistent with the 

requirements and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 

Code. 

f. The Transactions and Use tax shall be administered and collected by the 

Board of Equalization in a manner that adapts itself as fully as practicable to, and requires the 

least possible deviation from, the existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by 

the Board of Equalization in administering and collecting the California State Sales and Use 

Taxes. 

g. This Transactions and Use tax shall be administered in a manner that will be, 

to the greatest degree possible, consistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the 

Revenue and Taxation Code, minimizes the cost of collecting the transactions and use taxes, 

and at the same time, minimizes the burden of record keeping upon persons subject to 

taxation under the provisions of this Ordinance. 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

29 

31 

32 

33 

34 

5 



5

10

15

20

25

30

1 SECTION 6. ADMINISTRATION BY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

a. CONTRACT WITH STATE. Prior to the operative date, Metro shall contract with 

the Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the administration and operation of 

this Ordinance; provided, that if Metro shall not have contracted with the Board of Equalization 

prior to the operative date, it shall nevertheless so contract and in such a case the operative 

date shall be the first day of the first calendar quarter following the execution of such a contract. 

b. TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE. For the privilege of selling tangible personal 

property at retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated and 

unincorporated territory of Los Angeles County at the rate of one half of one percent (.5%) of the 

gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible personal property sold at retail in said 

territory on and after the operative date of this Ordinance. The rate of this tax shall increase to 

one percent (1.0%) of the gross receipts on July 1, 2039 immediately upon the expiration of the 

.5% tax imposed by Ordinance No. 08-01 of the Los Angeles County Metropolitan 

Transportation Authority (Measure R). 

c. PLACE OF SALE. For the purposes of this Ordinance, all retail sales are 

consummated at the place of business of the retailer unless the tangible personal property sold 

is delivered by the retailer or his agent to an out-of-state destination or to a common carrier for 

delivery to an out-of-state destination. The gross receipts from such sales shall include delivery 

charges, when such charges are subject to the state sales and use tax, regardless of the place 

to which delivery is made. In the event a retailer has no permanent place of business in the 

State or has more than one place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are 

consummated shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by 

the Board of Equalization. 

d. USE TAX RATE. An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, use, or other 

consumption in Los Angeles County of tangible personal property purchased from any retailer 

on and after the operative date of this Ordinance for storage, use, or other consumption in Los 

Angeles County at the rate of one half of one percent (.5%) of the sales price of the property. 

The rate of this tax shall increase to one percent (1.0%) of the sales price of the property on 

July 1, 2039 immediately upon the expiration of the .5% tax imposed by Ordinance No. 08-01 of 

the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Measure R). The sales price 

shall include delivery charges when such charges are subject to state sales or use tax 

regardless of the place to which delivery is made. 

e. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW. Except as otherwise provided in 

this Ordinance and except insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

29 

31 

32 

33 

34 

6 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing with 

Section 6001) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made a 

part of this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein. 

f. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLLECTION OF USE 

TAXES. In adopting the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code: 

1. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing 

agency, the name of Metro shall be substituted therefor. However, the substitution shall not be 

made when: 

A. The word “State” is used as a part of the title of the State 

Controller, State Treasurer, Victim Compensation and Government Claims Board, State Board 

of Equalization, State Treasury, or the Constitution of the State of California; 

B. The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by 

or against Metro or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or against the Board 

of Equalization, in performing the functions incident to the administration or operation of this 

Ordinance. 

C. In those sections, including, but not necessarily limited to sections 

referring to the exterior boundaries of the State of California, where the result of the substitution 

would be to: 

i. Provide an exemption from this Sales Tax with respect to 

certain sales, storage, use, or other consumption of tangible personal property which would not 

otherwise be exempt from this Sales Tax while such sales, storage, use, or other consumption 

remain subject to tax by the State under the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue 

and Taxation Code; or 

ii. Impose this Sales Tax with respect to certain sales, 

storage, use, or other consumption of tangible personal property that would not be subject to 

this Sales Tax by the state under the said provision of that code. 

D. In Sections 6701, 6702 (except in the last sentence thereof), 

6711, 6715, 6737, 6797, or 6828 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

2. The phrase “Los Angeles County” shall be substituted for the words “this 

state” in the phrase “retailer engaged in business in this state” in Section 6203 and in the 

definition of that phrase in Section 6203 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

g. PERMIT NOT REQUIRED. If a seller's permit has been issued to a retailer 

under Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional transactor's permit shall 

not be required by this Ordinance. 

7 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

h. EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS. 

1. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions tax and the 

use tax the amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by any city, 

city and county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Burns Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax Law 

or the amount of any state-administered transactions or use tax. 

2. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of transactions 

tax the gross receipts from: 

A. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum 

products, to operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the County in which 

the sale is made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common carriers of 

persons or property under the authority of the laws of this State, the United States, or any 

foreign government. 

B. Sales of property to be used outside Los Angeles County which is 

shipped to a point outside Los Angeles County, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to 

such point by the retailer or his agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a 

consignee at such point. For the purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point outside Los 

Angeles County shall be satisfied: 

i. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) 

subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of 

the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, 

and undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of 

the Vehicle Code by registration to an address outside Los Angeles County and by a declaration 

under penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer, stating that such address is, in fact, his or her 

principal place of residence; and 

ii. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a 

place of business outside Los Angeles County and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed 

by the buyer, that the vehicle will be operated from that address. 

C. The sale of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to 

furnish the property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative 

date of this Ordinance. 

D. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of 

such property, for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the property for an 

amount fixed by the lease prior to the operative date of this Ordinance. 

8 



5

10

15

20

25

30

1 E. For the purposes of subparagraphs (C) and (D) of this section, the 

sale or lease of tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a 

contract or lease for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease has the 

unconditional right to terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is 

exercised. 

3. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this Ordinance, the 

storage, use, or other consumption in Los Angeles County of tangible personal property: 

A. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a 

transactions tax under any state-administered transactions and use tax ordinance. 

B. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operators of 

aircraft and used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in the use of such 

aircraft as common carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation under a certificate 

of public convenience and necessity issued pursuant to the laws of this State, the United States, 

or any foreign government. This exemption is in addition to the exemptions provided in 

Sections 6366 and 6366.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California. 

C. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed 

price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this Ordinance. 

D. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the 

tangible personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of such property 

for any period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the property for an amount fixed 

by a lease prior to the operative date of this Ordinance. 

E. For the purposes of subparagraphs (C) and (D) of this section, 

storage, use, or other consumption, or possession of, or exercise of any right or power over, 

tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease 

for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to 

terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

F. Except as provided in subparagraph (G), a retailer engaged in 

business in Los Angeles County shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of 

tangible personal property, unless the retailer ships or delivers the property into the County or 

participates within the County in making the sale of the property, including, but not limited to, 

soliciting or receiving the order, either directly or indirectly, at a place of business of the retailer 

in County or through any representative, agent, canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person in the 

County under the authority of the retailer. 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

29 

31 

32 

33 

9 



5

10

15

20

25

30

1 G. “A retailer engaged in business in Los Angeles County” shall also 

include any retailer of any of the following: vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 

(commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in 

compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, or undocumented vessels registered 

under Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code. That retailer shall be 

required to collect use tax from any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or 

aircraft at an address in Los Angeles County. 

4. Any person subject to use tax under this Ordinance may credit against 

that tax any transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district imposing, or 

retailer liable for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and 

Taxation Code with respect to the sale to the person of the property the storage, use, or other 

consumption of which is subject to the use tax. 

i. AMENDMENTS. All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this 

Ordinance to Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use 

taxes and which are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and 

Taxation Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and 

Taxation Code, shall automatically become a part of this Ordinance, provided however, that no 

such amendment shall operate so as to affect the rate of tax imposed by this Ordinance. 

j. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN. No injunction or writ of mandate or 

other legal or equitable process shall issue in any suit, action, or proceeding in any court 

against the State or Metro, or against any officer of the State or Metro, to prevent or enjoin the 

collection under this Ordinance, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, 

of any tax or any amount of tax required to be collected. 

SECTION 7. USE OF REVENUES 

a. All Net Revenues generated from the Sales Tax imposed pursuant to this 

Ordinance plus any Interest, less any funds necessary for satisfaction of debt service and 

related requirements of all bonds issued and obligations incurred pursuant to this Ordinance 

that are not satisfied out of separate allocations, shall be allocated solely for the transportation 

purposes described in this Ordinance. 

b. Metro shall establish and administer a sales tax revenue fund and such 

subfunds as established in this Ordinance. All Net Revenues and Interest on Sales Tax 

Revenues shall be credited into the sales tax revenue fund and credited to the appropriate 

subfunds and programs in accordance with the percentages in the column entitled “% of Sales 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

29 

31 

32 

33 

34 

10 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

Tax (net of Admin)” on page 1 of Attachment A. All sums in the sales tax revenue fund shall 

be expended by Metro for the projects and programs described in Attachment A. Metro may 

expend additional funds from sources other than the Sales Tax imposed pursuant to this 

Ordinance on the projects and programs described in Attachment A. 

1. Metro shall establish the following subfunds of the sales tax revenue 

fund: 

A. Transit Operating and Maintenance Subfund, for Metro Rail 

Operations program funds, Transit Operations (Metro and Municipal Providers) program funds, 

ADA Paratransit for the disabled and Metro discounts for seniors and students program funds. 

i. Metro Rail Operations program funds are eligible to be 

used for Metro Rail State of Good Repair. 

ii. Transit Operations program funds are eligible to be used 

for Metro State of Good Repair. 

B. Transit, First/Last Mile (Capital) Subfund, for Transit Construction 

(including System Connectivity Projects – Airports, Union Station, and Countywide BRT) 

program funds and Metro State of Good Repair program funds. This subfund shall include a 

Transit Contingency Subfund. 

i. Transit Contingency Subfund. All Net Revenues allocated 

to the Transit, First/Last Mile (Capital) Subfund, except those allocated to Metro State of Good 

Repair, that are not assigned to a specific project or program coded “T” in the “modal code” 

column of Attachment A shall be credited to the Transit Contingency Subfund. 

C. Highway, Active Transportation, Complete Streets (Capital) 

Subfund, for Highway Construction (including System Connectivity Projects – Ports, Highway 

Congestion Programs and Goods Movement) program funds and Metro Active Transportation 

(Bicycle, Pedestrian, Complete Streets) program funds. This subfund shall include a Highway 

Contingency Subfund. 

i. Highway Contingency Subfund. All Net Revenues 

allocated to the Highway, Active Transportation, Complete Streets (Capital) Subfund, except 

those allocated to Metro Active Transportation Program, that are not assigned to a specific 

highway capital project or program coded “H” in the “modal code” column of Attachment A shall 

be credited to the Highway Contingency Subfund. 

D. Local Return/Regional Rail Subfund, for Local Return program 

funds and Regional Rail program funds. 

2. For each project identified in the “Expenditure Plan Major Projects” 

11 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

section of Attachment A, Metro shall expend the amount of Net Revenues specified in the 

column entitled “Measure M Funding 2015$” for each project. Such expenditures shall 

commence in the fiscal year identified in the column “Groundbreaking Start Date,” or in the 

subsequent two fiscal years, except that expenditures for preconstruction costs may commence 

sooner. 

A. Metro may expend funds from the Contingency Subfunds for 

inflation adjustments for any project identified in the “Expenditure Plan Major Projects” section 

of Attachment A if less than two-thirds (2/3) of the amount allocated in the “Measure M 

Funding 2015$” column has been expended prior to the first day of Fiscal Year 2027. Such 

expenditures shall be deducted from the Highway Contingency Subfund if the project is coded 

“H” in the “modal code” column of Attachment A or from the Transit Contingency Subfund if 

the project is coded “T” in the “modal code” column of Attachment A. Such expenditures shall 

not exceed the actual amount of inflation since 2015 as determined by an index selected by 

the Metro Board of Directors. 

3. For each program identified in the “Multi-Year Subregional Programs” 

section of Attachment A, Metro shall expend the amount of Net Revenues specified in the 

column entitled “Measure M Funding 2015$” for each program. Such expenditures shall 

commence in the fiscal year identified in the column “Groundbreaking Start Date,” or in the 

subsequent two fiscal years, except that expenditures for preconstruction costs may 

commence sooner. 

A. Metro may expend funds from the Contingency Subfunds for 

inflation adjustments for any project identified in the “Multi-Year Subregional Programs” 

section of Attachment A beginning in Fiscal Year 2027. Such expenditures shall be deducted 

from the Highway Contingency Subfund if the project is coded “H” in the “modal code” column 

of Attachment A or from the Transit Contingency Subfund if the project is coded “T” in the 

“modal code” column of Attachment A. Such expenditures shall not exceed the actual amount 

of inflation since 2015 as determined by an index selected by the Metro Board of Directors. 

4. Metro shall expend funds allocated to the Contingency Subfunds, to the 

extent necessary, to service the debt of any bonds issued or other obligations incurred 

pursuant to Section 12 of this Ordinance. 

5. Metro may expend funds from the Contingency Subfunds for 

Expenditure Plan Major Projects or Multi-Year Subregional Programs in any fiscal year in 

which Net Revenues received are not sufficient to meet Metro’s funding obligations for that 

year for such projects. 

12 



5

10

15

20

25

30

1 6. No earlier than July 1, 2039, the Metro Board of Directors shall increase 

the percentage of Net Revenues allocated to the Regional Rail program of the Local Return 

and Regional Rail Subfund from one percent (1%) to two percent (2%) provided that the 

recipient(s) satisfy certain performance criteria, which shall be adopted by the Metro Board of 

Directors. Any such increase in Net Revenues allocated to Regional Rail shall be offset by 

corresponding reductions in Net Revenues allocated to either the Transit, First/Last Mile 

(Capital) Subfund or Highway, Active Transportation, Complete Streets (Capital) Subfund, or 

both. No reduction shall delay any projects in Attachment A. 

7. On July 1, 2039, the percentage of Net Revenues allocated to the Local 

Return program shall increase by three percent of Net Revenues. The Metro Board of 

Directors shall make corresponding reductions to either the Transit Construction or Highway 

Construction programs, or both. No reduction shall delay any projects in Attachment A. 

c. The Metro Board of Directors shall adopt guidelines regarding Multi-Year 

Subregional Programs identified in Attachment A. The guidelines shall, at minimum, specify 

definitions of active transportation, first/last mile, visionary seed project studies, street car and 

circulator projects, greenway projects, mobility hubs, highway efficiency and operational 

improvement projects, bus system improvements, highway demand-based programs (such as 

high occupancy vehicle extensions and connections), transit capital projects, transportation 

system and mobility improvements, bus rapid transit capital improvements, safe route to 

schools, multi-modal connectivity projects, arterial street improvements, freeway interchange 

improvements, goods movement improvements, highway and transit noise mitigations, 

intelligent transportation systems, transportation technology improvements, streetscape 

enhancements and Great Streets, public transit state of good repair, and traffic congestion 

relief improvements. 

d. Metro may enter into an agreement with the Board of Equalization to transfer 

Sales Tax Revenues directly to a bond trustee or similar fiduciary, in order to provide for the 

timely payment of debt service and related obligations, prior to Metro's receipt and deposit of 

such Sales Tax Revenues into the sales tax revenue fund; provided, however, that such 

payments of debt service and related obligations shall be allocated to the appropriate subfund 

consistent with the expenditure of the proceeds of the corresponding debt. 

e. Metro shall include the projects and programs in Attachment A in the Long 

Range Transportation Plan within one year of the date the Ordinance takes effect. The revised 

and updated Long Range Transportation Plan shall also include capital projects and capital 

programs that are adopted by each subregion that are submitted to Metro for inclusion in the 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

29 

31 

32 

33 

34 

13 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

revised and updated Long Range Transportation Plan, if the cost and schedule details are 

provided by the subregions, in a manner consistent with the requirements of the plan. 

f. Three percent (3%) of the total project cost of any Expenditure Plan Major 

Project coded “T” in Attachment A shall be paid by each incorporated city within Los Angeles 

County, and Los Angeles County for those projects in unincorporated areas, based upon the 

percent of project total centerline track miles to be constructed within that jurisdiction’s borders if 

one (1) or more stations are to be constructed within the borders of said jurisdiction. An 

agreement approved by both Metro and the governing board of the jurisdiction shall specify the 

total project cost determined at the conclusion of thirty percent (30%) completion of final design 

(which shall not be subject to future cost increases), the amount to be paid, and a schedule of 

payments. If the total project cost estimate is reduced after the conclusion of thirty percent 

(30%) completion of final design, the proportionate cost to the jurisdiction shall be reduced 

accordingly. The jurisdiction may request a betterment for a project. The jurisdiction, however, 

shall incur the full cost of any such betterment. Such agreements shall be in accordance with 

guidelines adopted by the Metro Board of Directors. 

1. If no agreement is entered into and approved prior to the award of 

any contract authorizing the construction of the project within the borders of the jurisdiction, or if 

at any time the local jurisdiction is in default of any sums due pursuant to the approved 

agreement, all funds contained in the Local Return/Regional Rail Subfund allocated to that 

jurisdiction may, at Metro’s sole discretion, be withheld for not longer than fifteen (15) years and 

used to pay for the project until the three percent (3%) threshold is met. 

g. Once every ten (10) years, beginning in Fiscal Year 2027, Metro shall conduct 

a comprehensive assessment of each project and program identified in Attachment A as an 

“Expenditure Plan Major Project” or “Multi-Year Subregional Program.” This assessment shall 

determine which projects or programs are either completed, or anticipated to be completed 

during the next ten-year period. The Measure M Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

of Metro, established pursuant to Section 8, shall review and comment on the assessment. 

Metro shall also conduct a public review prior to the assessment’s approval. Upon approval of 

this assessment by a two-thirds vote, the Metro Board of Directors may: 

1. Add “Expenditure Plan Major Projects” and “Multi-Year Subregional 

Programs” to the Expenditure Plan by a two-thirds (2/3) vote so long as such additions do not 

delay the Groundbreaking Start Date, Expected Opening Date, or amount of “Measure M 

Funding 2015$” of any other “Expenditure Plan Major Project” or “Multi-Year Subregional 

14 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

Program.” No “Expenditure Plan Major Projects” or “Multi-Year Subregional Programs” may 

be added to the Expenditure Plan except through the decennial process described herein. 

A. Should an “Expenditure Plan Major Project” or “Multi-Year 

Subregional Program”, except for those coded “sc” in the “subregion” column of Attachment A, 

be completed without the expenditure of all Net Revenues allocated to that project or program 

in Attachment A, the surplus Net Revenues shall be expended on projects or programs in the 

same subregion as the project or program so completed. The Metro Board of Directors shall 

determine by a two-thirds (2/3) vote whether a project or program is complete. 

B. Should an “Expenditure Plan Major Project” or “Multi-Year 

Subregional Program” coded “sc” in the “subregion” column of Attachment A be completed 

without the expenditure of all Net Revenues allocated to that project or program in Attachment 

A, the surplus Net Revenues shall be expended on another “Expenditure Plan Major Project” 

or “Multi-Year Subregional Program” coded “sc” in the “subregion” column of Attachment A. 

The Metro Board of Directors shall determine by a two-thirds (2/3) vote whether a project or 

program is complete. 

2. Adopt an amendment to transfer Net Revenues between the Transit, 

First/Last Mile (Capital) Subfund and the Highway, Active Transportation, Complete Streets 

(Capital) Subfund pursuant to Section 11(c). No such amendment shall be adopted except 

through the decennial process described herein. 

3. Adopt an amendment to Attachment B pursuant to Section 11(a). No 

such amendment shall be adopted except through the decennial process described herein 

provided, however, the Metro Board of Directors shall not adopt an amendment to Attachment 

B prior to the comprehensive assessment in Fiscal Year 2047. 

h. No Net Revenues generated from the Sales Tax shall be expended on the 

State Route 710 North Gap Closure Project. 

i. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, no recipient of Local 

Return program funds may expend more than thirty-three and one-third percent (33⅓  %) of 

total funds received in any fiscal year on Green Streets. 

SECTION 8. OVERSIGHT 

a. There is hereby established a Measure M Independent Taxpayer Oversight 

Committee of Metro (“Committee”) to provide an enhanced level of accountability for 

expenditures of sales tax revenues made under the Expenditure Plan. The Committee shall 

15 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

meet at least four (4) times each year to carry out the purposes of this Ordinance. The 

Committee reports directly to the Metro Board of Directors and the public. 

b. It is the intent that the Committee will assist Metro and take advantage of 

changing situations in the future with regard to technologies and transportation developments. 

Therefore, the provisions contained in this Ordinance are based on a 2016 perspective and are 

not meant to be unduly restrictive on the Committee’s and Metro’s roles and responsibilities. 

c. Committee Membership. The Committee Members established for oversight 

shall carry out the responsibilities laid out in this Ordinance and play a valuable and constructive 

role in the ongoing improvement and enhancement of this Ordinance. 

1. As such, the Committee Members shall be comprised of seven (7) 

voting members representing the following professions or areas of expertise: 

A. A retired Federal or State judge 

B. A professional from the field of municipal/public finance and/or 

budgeting with a minimum of ten (10) years of relevant experience 

C. A transit professional with a minimum of ten (10) years of 

experience in senior-level decision making in transit operations and labor practices 

D. A professional with a minimum of ten (10) years of experience in 

management and administration of financial policies, performance measurements, and reviews 

E. A professional with demonstrated experience of ten (10) years or 

more in the management of large-scale construction projects 

F. A licensed architect or engineer with appropriate credentials in the 

field of transportation project design or construction and a minimum of ten (10) years of relevant 

experience 

G. A regional association of businesses representative with at least 

ten (10) years of senior-level decision making experience in the private sector 

2. The intent is to have one member representing each of the specified 

areas of expertise. If, however, after a good faith effort, qualified individuals have not been 

identified for one (1) or more of the areas of expertise, then no more than two (2) members from 

one (1) or more of the remaining areas of expertise may be selected. 

3. The members of the Committee must reside in Los Angeles County and 

be subject to conflict of interest provisions. No person currently serving as an elected or 

appointed city, county, special district, state, or federal public officeholder shall be eligible to 

serve as a member of the Committee. 

d. Conflict of Interest. The Committee members shall be subject to Metro’s conflict 

16 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

of interest policies. The members shall have no legal action pending against Metro and are 

prohibited from acting in any commercial activity directly or indirectly involving Metro, such as 

being a consultant to Metro or to any party with pending legal actions against Metro during their 

tenure on this Committee. Committee members shall not have direct commercial interest or 

employment with any public or private entity, which receives sales tax funds authorized by this 

Ordinance. 

e. Committee Membership Selection Panel. The Selection Panel (“Panel”) shall 

select for approval the Oversight Committee Members, who will be responsible for performing 

the responsibilities under this Ordinance. The Panel will be comprised of three (3) persons, 

each of whom shall be members of the Metro Board of Directors, or their designee. 

1. The Panel shall be selected as follows, and will represent the existing 

leadership of Metro’s Board (Chair, Vice Chair, and second Vice Chair): 

A. One representative from the Los Angeles County Board of 

Supervisors; and 

B. One representative selected by the Mayor of the City of Los 

Angeles; and 

C. One representative from the Los Angeles County Cities 

2. The Panel shall screen and recommend potential candidates for 

Committee Membership. The Panel will develop guidelines to solicit, collect, and review 

applications of potential candidates for membership on the Committee. The filling of 

membership vacancies, due to removals and reappointments will follow these same guidelines. 

3. The recommended candidates for Committee Membership 

shall be approved by the Metro Board by a simple majority. 

f. Term. Each member of the Committee shall serve for a term of five (5) years, 

and until a successor is appointed, except that initial appointments may be staggered with terms 

of three (3) years. A Committee member may be removed at any time by the appointing 

authority. Term limits for Committee members will be staggered to prevent significant turnover 

at any one time. There is no limit as to the number of terms that a Committee member may 

serve. Members will be compensated through a stipend and they may choose to waive. 

g. Resignation. Any member may, at any time, resign from the Committee upon 

written notice delivered to the Metro Board. Acceptance of any public office, the filing of intent 

to seek public office, including a filing under California Government Code Section 85200, or 

change of residence to outside the County shall constitute a Member’s automatic resignation. 

h. Committee Responsibilities. The Committee shall, at a minimum, meet on a 

17 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

quarterly basis to carry out its responsibilities and is hereby charged with the following 

responsibilities: 

1. General Responsibilities 

A. The Committee will have the responsibility for approving the scope 

of work and direct the work of the auditors, to include at minimum the above mentioned areas. 

Selection of the auditors will follow the Board approved procurement and solicitation policies. 

The Committee will be involved in the solicitation and selection process of the auditors. 

B. The Committee shall prepare an annual report on the results of the 

annual audit per Section 8(h)(3)(B), any findings made, and report the comments to the Metro 

Board of Directors. 

C. The Committee shall review all proposed debt financing and make 

a finding as to whether the benefits of the proposed financing for accelerating project delivery, 

avoiding future cost escalation, and related factors exceed issuance and interest costs. 

D. The Committee shall review any proposed amendments to the 

Ordinance, including the Expenditure Plan, and make a finding as to whether the proposed 

amendments further the purpose of the Ordinance. 

2. Quarterly Responsibilities. The Committee shall at minimum review the 

following: 

A. For each Subfund, make findings on the effective and efficient use 

of funds. 

B. For Local Return funds, review the programmed revenues and 

uses for each of the local jurisdictions. 

C. For Transit and Highway (Capital), review comparison of budget 

expended to project milestone completion, comparison of contingency spent to project 

completion, and review of soft costs expended. 

D. For Active Transportation Program, review programmed revenues 

and uses. 

E. For State of Good Repair, review budget and expenses. 

F. For Transit Operating and Maintenance (which includes Metro Rail 

Operations, Transit Operations, ADA Paratransit for the disabled/Metro discounts for seniors 

and students, and Regional Rail), review budget and expenses. 

3. Annual Responsibilities 

A. The Committee shall review the results of the audit performed 

18 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

and make findings as to whether Metro is in compliance with the terms of the Ordinance. Such 

findings shall include a determination as to whether recipients of Net Revenues allocated and 

funds were expended for all the Subfunds (listed in Attachment A) and have complied with this 

Ordinance and any additional guidelines developed by Metro. 

B. Annual Financial and Compliance Audit. Metro shall contract for 

an annual audit, to be completed within six (6) months after the end of the fiscal year being 

audited, for the purpose of determining compliance by Metro with the provisions of this 

Ordinance relating to the receipt and expenditure of Sales Tax Revenues during such fiscal 

year. The audit should include a determination as to whether recipients of Net Revenues 

allocated from these Subfunds have complied with this Ordinance and any additional guidelines 

developed by Metro for these Subfunds. 

C. For major corridor projects, included in the Expenditure Plan, the 

Committee shall review at least once a year: 

i. Project costs, established LOP budgets, and any 

significant cost increases and/or major scope changes of the major corridor projects identified in 

the Expenditure Plan. 

ii. The funding available and programmed for the projects 

included in the Expenditure Plan, as well as any funding gaps for each of these projects. The 

Committee shall provide recommendations on possible improvements and modifications to 

deliver the Plan. 

iii. Performance in terms of project delivery, cost controls, 

schedule adherence, and related activities. 

4. Five-Year Responsibilities 

A. The Committee shall review the Comprehensive Program 

Assessment of the Expenditure Plan every five (5) years or every ten (10) years in accordance 

with Section 7(g) and make findings and/or provide recommendations for improving the 

program. The results of this assessment will be presented to the Metro Board of Directors. 

B. Comprehensive Program Assessment. Metro shall conduct every 

five (5) years a comprehensive review of all projects and programs implemented under the Plan 

to evaluate the performance of the overall program and make recommendations to improve its 

performance on current practices, best practices, and organizational changes to improve 

coordination. 

i. Accountability to the Public and the Metro Board. All audit reports, findings, and 

recommendations will be available and accessible to the public (through various types of media) 

19 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

prior to the public hearing and upon request. Metro will establish a website dedicated to the 

Oversight of this Measure and include all pertinent Ordinance information for the public. The 

Committee shall review all audits and hold an annual public hearing to report on the results of 

the audits. 

SECTION 9. MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT REQUIREMENTS 

a. It is the intent of Metro that any Sales Tax Revenues provided to local 

jurisdictions in Los Angeles County under the program described in Attachment A as “Local 

Return” be used to augment, not supplant, existing local revenues being used for 

transportation purposes. 

b. Metro shall develop guidelines that, at a minimum, specify maintenance of 

effort requirements for the local return program, matching funds, and administrative 

requirements for the recipients of revenue derived from the Sales Tax. 

SECTION 10. COSTS OF ADMINISTRATION 

Metro shall establish an Administration/Local Return fund and one and one-half 

percent (1.5%) of Gross Sales Tax revenues shall be credited into this fund. As funds are 

received by Metro and credited to this fund, one percent (1%) of Net Revenues shall be 

immediately transferred to the Local Return/Regional Rail Subfund of the sales tax revenue 

fund to be used solely for the Local Return program. All other amounts in the 

Administration/Local Return fund shall be available to Metro for administrative costs, including 

contractual services. 

SECTION 11. AMENDMENTS 

a. The Metro Board of Directors may amend this Ordinance, including Attachment 

A and Attachment B, with the exception of Section 11, for any purpose subject to the 

limitations contained in Section 7(g), including as necessary to account for the results of any 

environmental review required under the California Environmental Quality Act or the National 

Environmental Policy Act and any related federal statute of the projects listed in Attachment A. 

Any such amendments shall be approved by a vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the 

Metro Board of Directors. Metro shall hold a public meeting on proposed amendments prior to 

adoption. Metro shall provide notice of the public meeting to the Los Angeles County Board of 

Supervisors, the city council of each city in Los Angeles County, and the public, and shall 

20 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

provide them with a copy of the proposed amendments, at least 60 days prior to the public 

meeting. 

b. By two-thirds (2/3) vote, the Metro Board of Directors may amend the 

“Schedule of Funds Available” columns listed in Attachment A to accelerate a project, 

provided that any such amendments shall not reduce the amount of funds assigned to any 

other project or program as shown in the “Measure M Funding 2015$” column of Attachment 

A or delay the Schedule of Funds Available for any other project or program. Metro shall hold 

a public meeting on proposed amendments prior to adoption. Metro shall provide notice of the 

public meeting to the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors, the city council of each city in 

Los Angeles County, and the public, and shall provide them with a copy of the proposed 

amendments, at least 30 days prior to the public meeting. 

c. The Metro Board of Directors shall not adopt any amendment to this 

Ordinance, including Attachment A, that reduces total Net Revenues allocated to the sum of 

the Transit, First/Last Mile (Capital) Subfund and the Highway, Active Transportation, 

Complete Streets (Capital) Subfund. Not more than once in any ten (10) year period 

commencing in FY2027, Metro may adopt an amendment transferring Net Revenues between 

the Transit, First/Last Mile (Capital) Subfund and the Highway, Active Transportation, 

Complete Streets (Capital) Subfund. This subparagraph shall not apply to adjustments to the 

Net Revenues allocated to the Transit, First/Last Mile (Capital) Subfund and the Highway, 

Active Transportation, Complete Streets (Capital) Subfund pursuant to Section 7(b)(6) or 

Section 7(b)(7). Such adjustments shall not require an amendment to this Ordinance or 

Attachment A. 

d. Notwithstanding Section 11(a) of this Ordinance, the Metro Board of Directors 

shall not adopt any amendment to this Ordinance, including Attachment A, that reduces Net 

Revenues allocated to the Transit Operating & Maintenance Subfund or the Local 

Return/Regional Rail Subfund. 

e. The Metro Board of Directors may amend Section 11 of this Ordinance if such 

amendments are approved by a vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the Metro Board of 

Directors and are approved by a majority of the voters voting on a measure to approve the 

amendment. Metro shall hold a public meeting on proposed amendments prior to adoption. 

Metro shall provide notice of the public meeting to the Los Angeles County Board of 

Supervisors, the city council of each city in Los Angeles County, and the public, and shall 

provide them with a copy of the proposed amendments, at least 60 days prior to the public 

meeting. Amendments shall become effective immediately upon approval by the voters. 

21 



5

10

15

20

25

30

1 SECTION 12. ESTABLISHMENT OF BONDING AUTHORITY 

a. Metro is authorized to issue limited tax bonds and incur other obligations, from 

time to time, payable from and secured by all or any portion of the Sales Tax Revenues to 

finance any program or project in the Expenditure Plan, pursuant to Sections 130500 et seq. of 

the Public Utilities Code, and any successor act, or pursuant to any other applicable sections of 

the Public Utilities Code or the Government Code. As additional security, such bonds and other 

obligations may be further payable from and secured by farebox revenues or general revenues 

of Metro, on a basis subordinate to Metro’s existing General Revenue Bonds, or any other 

available source of Metro’s revenues, in each case as specified in a resolution adopted by a 

majority of Metro’s Board of Directors. The maximum bonded indebtedness, including issuance 

costs, interest, reserve requirements and bond insurance, shall not exceed the total amount of 

the Gross Sales Tax. Nothing herein shall limit or restrict in any way the power and authority of 

Metro to issue bonds, notes or other obligations, to enter into loan agreements, leases, 

reimbursement agreements, standby bond purchase agreements, interest rate swap 

agreements or other derivative contracts or to engage in any other transaction under the 

Government Code, the Public Utilities Code or any other law. 

b. The Metro Board of Directors shall adopt guidelines regarding the issuance of 

bonds and the incurrence of other obligations pursuant to this Section 12. The guidelines shall, 

at a minimum, establish methods for taking into account (a) the expenditure of proceeds of such 

bonds and other obligations and (b) the payment of debt service and other amounts with respect 

to such bonds and other obligations, for purposes of meeting the program expenditure 

requirements of Section 7 hereof. 

SECTION 13. APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

Article XIIIB of the California Constitution requires certain governmental entities to 

establish an annual appropriations limit. This appropriations limit is subject to adjustment as 

provided by law. To the extent required by law, Metro shall establish an annual appropriations 

limit and expenditures of the retail transactions and use tax shall be subject to such limit. 

SECTION 14. ELECTION 

Pursuant to California Public Utilities Code Section 130350.7(d), Metro hereby calls a 

special election to place this Ordinance before the voters. The ballot language shall read as 

follows: 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 

29 

31 

32 

33 

34 

22 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Los Angeles County Traffic Improvement Plan. 

To improve freeway traffic flow/safety; repair potholes/sidewalks; repave local streets; 

earthquake retrofit bridges; synchronize signals; keep senior/disabled/student fares 

affordable; expand rail/subway/bus systems; improve job/school/airport connections; and 

create jobs; shall voters authorize a Los Angeles County Traffic Improvement Plan 

through a ½ ¢ sales tax and continue the existing ½ ¢ traffic relief tax until voters decide 

to end it, with independent audits/oversight and funds controlled locally? 

SECTION 15. EFFECTIVE DATE 

a. This Ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2017, if: 

1. Two-thirds (2/3) of the voters voting on the measure vote to approve 

this Ordinance at the statewide general election scheduled for November 8, 2016; and 

2. No California state statute that requires Metro to provide funding from 

revenues derived from the Sales Tax imposed pursuant to this Ordinance for any project or 

program other than those in the Expenditure Plan, or provide a level of funding greater than 

described in the Expenditure Plan, or on a different schedule than described in the Expenditure 

Plan, is adopted by the California Legislature subsequent to the adoption of this Ordinance by 

the Metro Board of Directors and becomes law. 

SECTION 16. SEVERABILITY 

If any tax or provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unenforceable 

by a court of competent jurisdiction, that holding shall not affect the validity or enforceability of 

the remaining taxes or provisions, and Metro declares that it would have passed each part of 

this Ordinance irrespective of the validity of any other part. 

23 



 

 

  
    

                           

     

                                       

 
 

     

                                       

 

 
     

                                       

 
 

     

                             

                                                 

                                                           

                                                      

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Subfund Program 

% of 
Sales 
Tax

 (net of 
Admin) 

First 
Year 

Amount 
(FY 2018) 

FY 2018 -
FY 2032 

(15 Years) 

FY 2033 -
FY 2047 

(15 Years) 

FY 2048 -
FY 2057 

(10 Years) 

FY 2018 -
FY 2057 

(40 Years) 

Transit 
Operating & 
Maintenance 

Metro Rail Operations 1 5% $ 42 $ 850 $ 2,320 $ 2,810 $ 5,980 

Transit Operations 2 

(Metro & Municipal Providers) 
20% $ 169 $ 3,400 $ 9,280 $ 11,240 $ 23,920 

ADA Paratransit for the 
Disabled; Metro Discounts for 
Seniors and Students 

2% $ 17 $ 340 $ 930 $ 1,120 $ 2,390 

Transit, 
First/Last Mile 

(Capital) 

Transit Construction 
(Includes System Connectivity 
Projects - Airports, Union Station, 
and Countywide BRT) 

35% $ 296 $ 5,960 $ 16,230 $ 19,670 $ 41,860 

Metro State of Good Repair 5 2% $ 17 $ 340 $ 930 $ 1,120 $ 2,390 

Highway, 
Active 

Transportation, 
Complete 
Streets 

(Capital) 

Highway Construction 
(includes System Connectivity 
Projects - Ports, Highway 
Congestion Programs, Goods 
Movement) 

17% $ 144 $ 2,890 $ 7,880 $ 9,560 $ 20,330 

Metro Active Transportation 
Program (Bicycle, Pedestrian, 
Complete Streets) 

2% $ 17 $ 340 $ 930 $ 1,120 $ 2,390 

Local Return / 
Regional Rail 

Local Return - Base 3 

(Local Projects and Transit 
Services) 

16% $ 136 $ 2,720 $ 7,420 $ 8,990 $ 19,130 

Local Return / Regional Rail 

(Beginning FY 2040) 4 

3% / 1% 

$ 690 $ 2,240 $ 2,930 

Regional Rail 1% $ 8 $ 170 $ 460 $ 560 $ 1,200 

TOTAL PROGRAMS $ 847 $ 17,010 $ 46,380 $ 56,190 $ 119,590 

Administration 
/Local Return 

0.5% for Administration 0.5% $ 4 $ 85 $ 230 $ 280 $ 600 

1.0% Local Return 3 1.0% $ 8 $ 170 $ 460 $ 560 $ 1,200 

GRAND TOTAL $ 860 $ 17,265 $ 47,070 $ 57,030 $ 121,390 

Los Angeles County Transportation Expenditure Plan ATTACHMENT A 
Outline of Expenditure Categories 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2018 - 2057, Escalated Dollars 
(millions) 

1. Funds are eligible to be used for Metro Rail State of Good Repair. 
2. Funds are eligible to be used for Metro State of Good Repair. 
3. 1% Administration to supplement Local Return, increasing the Local Return-Base to 17% of net revenues. 

4. To be funded by Highway/Transit Capital Subfunds in FY 2040 and beyond. 
5. The Metro Board of Directors will prioritize the Wardlow Grade Separation project to receive new funding and/or grants 

and assign this project to be included in Metro’s State of Good Repair program. 

All totals are rounded; numbers presented in this document may not always add up to the totals provided. 
Based on January 2016 revenue projections. 



 

 

 

F
or

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 O

nl
y 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

44 

45 

46 

Schedule of Funds 
Available 

2016 - 2067 
Local, State, 

Measure M 
Most Recent o

d
e

Project 
Ground- Expected 

o
n

*
g

i Federal, 
Funding 

Cost 

M
o

d
al

 C

(Final Project to be Defined by the Environmental Process)

N
o

te
s breaking 

Start Date‡ 
Opening Date 
(3 year range) S

u
b

re Other 
Funding 

2015$ 

2015$ 
Estimate 
2015$** 

Expenditure Plan Major Projects 1st yr of Range 
Airport Metro Connect 96th St. Station/Green Line Ext LAX ® a,p FY 2018 CY 2021 sc $233,984 $347,016 $581,000 T 
Westside Purple Line Extension Section 3 ® b FY 2018 FY 2024 w $986,139 $994,251 $1,980,390 T 
High Desert Multi-Purpose Corridor (HDMC)® q FY 2019 FY 2021 nc $100,000 $170,000 $270,000 H 
I-5 N Cap. Enhancements (SR-14 to Lake Hughes Rd) ® FY 2019 FY 2023 nc $544,080 $240,000 $784,080 H 
Gold Line Foothill Extension to Claremont ® c FY 2019 FY 2025 sg $78,000 $1,019,000 $1,097,000 T 
Orange Line BRT Improvements n FY 2019 FY 2025 sf $0 $286,000 $286,000 T 
BRT Connector Orange/Red Line to Gold Line o FY 2020 FY 2022 av $0 $240,300 $240,300 T 
BRT Connector Orange/Red Line to Gold Line o FY 2020 FY 2022 sf $0 $26,700 $26,700 T 
East SF Valley Transit Corridor Project ® d FY 2021 FY 2027 sf $520,500 $810,500 $1,331,000 T 
West Santa Ana Transit Corridor LRT ® b,d FY 2022 FY 2028 gc $500,000 $535,000 $1,035,000 T 
Crenshaw/LAX Track Enhancement Project e,p FY 2022 FY 2026 sc $0 $49,599 $49,599 T 
SR-71 Gap from I-10 to Rio Rancho Rd. FY 2022 FY 2026 sg $26,443 $248,557 $275,000 H 
LA River Waterway & System Bikepath FY 2023 FY 2025 cc $0 $365,000 $365,000 H 
Complete LA River Bikepath FY 2023 FY 2025 sf $0 $60,000 $60,000 H 
Sepulveda Pass Transit Corridor (Ph 1) ® b,f FY 2024 FY 2026 sf $0 $130,000 $130,000 H 
Sepulveda Pass Transit Corridor (Ph 1) ® b,f FY 2024 FY 2026 w $0 $130,000 $130,000 H 
Vermont Transit Corridor o FY 2024 FY 2028 cc $400,000 $25,000 $425,000 T 
SR-57/SR-60 Interchange Improvements d FY 2025 FY 2031 sg $565,000 $205,000 $770,000 H 
Green Line Extension to Crenshaw Blvd in Torrance ® d,g FY 2026 FY 2030 sb $272,000 $619,000 $891,000 T 
I-710 South Corridor Project (Ph 1) ® d,h FY 2026 FY 2032 gc $150,000 $250,000 $400,000 H 
I-105 Express Lane from I-405 to I-605 p FY 2027 FY 2029 sc $0 $175,000 $175,000 H 
Sepulveda Pass Transit Corridor (Ph 2) ® b FY 2024 FY 2033 sf $1,567,000 $1,270,000 $2,837,000 T 
Sepulveda Pass Transit Corridor (Ph 2) ® b FY 2024 FY 2033 w $1,567,000 $1,270,000 $2,837,000 T 
Gold Line Eastside Extension (One Alignment) ® d FY 2029 FY 2035 gc $957,000 $543,000 $1,500,000 T 
Gold Line Eastside Extension (One Alignment) ® d FY 2029 FY 2035 sg $957,000 $543,000 $1,500,000 T 
West Santa Ana Transit Corridor LRT ® r FY 2022 FY 2041 cc $1,082,500 $400,000 $1,482,500 T 
West Santa Ana Transit Corridor LRT ® r FY 2022 FY 2041 gc $982,500 $500,000 $1,482,500 T 
I-710 South Corridor Project (Ph 2) ® FY 2032 FY 2041 gc $658,500 $250,000 $908,500 H 
I-5 Corridor Improvements (I-605 to I-710) FY 2036 FY 2042 gc $46,060 $1,059,000 $1,105,060 H 
Crenshaw Northern Extension i FY 2041 FY 2047 cc $495,000 $1,185,000 $1,680,000 T 
Crenshaw Northern Extension i FY 2041 FY 2047 w $0 $560,000 $560,000 T 
I-405/I-110 Int. HOV Connect Ramps & Intrchng Improv ® FY 2042 FY 2044 sb $0 $250,000 $250,000 H 
I-605/I-10 Interchange FY 2043 FY 2047 sg $472,400 $126,000 $598,400 H 
SR 60/I-605 Interchange HOV Direct Connectors FY 2043 FY 2047 sg $360,600 $130,000 $490,600 H 
Lincoln Blvd BRT l,o FY 2043 FY 2047 w $0 $102,000 $102,000 T 
I-110 Express Lane Ext South to I-405/I-110 Interchange FY 2044 FY 2046 sb $228,500 $51,500 $280,000 H 
I-405 South Bay Curve Improvements FY 2045 FY 2047 sb $250,840 $150,000 $400,840 H 
Green Line Eastern Extension (Norwalk) p FY 2046 FY 2052 sc $570,000 $200,000 $770,000 T 
SF Valley Transportation Improvements m FY 2048 FY 2050 sf $0 $106,800 $106,800 T 
Sepulveda Pass Westwood to LAX (Ph 3) p FY 2048 FY 2057 sc $3,800,000 $65,000 $3,865,000 T 
Orange Line Conversion to Light Rail FY 2051 FY 2057 sf $1,067,000 $362,000 $1,429,000 T 
City of San Fernando Bike Master Plan FY 2052 FY 2054 sf $0 $5,000 $5,000 H 
Historic Downtown Streetcar FY 2053 FY 2057 cc $0 $200,000 $200,000 T 
Gold Line Eastside Ext. Second Alignment p FY 2053 FY 2057 sc $110,000 $2,890,000 $3,000,000 T 
High Desert Multi-Purpose Corridor - LA County Segment p FY 2063 FY 2067 sc $32,982 $1,845,718 $1,878,700 H 
Expenditure Plan Major Projects Subtotal $19,581,027 $20,989,941 $40,570,969 

4 8 9 10 6

Los Angeles County Transportation Expenditure Plan ATTACHMENT A 
(2015 $ in thousands) Groundbreaking Sequence 

(Exceptions Noted) 

Footnotes on following page. 

** The most recent cost estimate equals the accelerated cost. Prior year expenses included in all project costs. 



 

 

 

F
or

 R
ef

er
en

ce
 O

nl
y 

47 

48 

49 

50 

51 

52 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

59 

60 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

66 

67 

68 

69 

70 

71 

72 

73 

74 

75 

76 

77 

78 

79 

80 

81 

82 

83 

84 

85 

86 

87 

88 

89 

90 

91 

92 

93 

94 

Schedule of Funds 
Available 

2016 - 2067 
Local, State, 

Measure M 
Most Recent o

d
e

Project 
Ground- Expected 

o
n

*
g

i Federal, 
Funding 

Cost 

M
o

d
al

 C

(Final Project to be Defined by the Environmental Process)

N
o

te
s breaking 

Start Date‡ 
Opening Date 
(3 year range) S

u
b

re Other 
Funding 

2015$ 

2015$ 
Estimate 
2015$** 

Multi-Year Subregional Programs 1st yr of Range 
Metro Active Transport, Transit 1st/Last Mile Program p FY 2018 FY 2057 sc $0 $857,500 $857,500 H 
Visionary Project Seed Funding p FY 2018 FY 2057 sc $0 $20,000 $20,000 T 
Street Car and Circulator Projects k,p FY 2018 FY 2022 sc $0 $35,000 $35,000 T 

Transportation System and Mobility Improve. Program FY 2018 FY 2032 sb $0 $293,500 $293,500 H 
Active Transportation 1st/Last Mile Connections Prog. FY 2018 FY 2057 w $0 $361,000 $361,000 H 
Active Transportation Program FY 2018 FY 2057 nc $0 $264,000 $264,000 H 
Active Transportation Program FY 2018 FY 2057 gc $0 TBD TBD H 
Active Transportation Program (Including Greenway Proj.) FY 2018 FY 2057 sg $0 $231,000 $231,000 H 
Active Transportation, 1st/Last Mile, & Mobility Hubs FY 2018 FY 2057 cc $0 $215,000 $215,000 H 
Active Transportation, Transit, and Tech. Program FY 2018 FY 2032 lvm $0 $32,000 $32,000 T 
Highway Efficiency Program FY 2018 FY 2032 lvm $0 $133,000 $133,000 H 
Bus System Improvement Program FY 2018 FY 2057 sg $0 $55,000 $55,000 T 
First/Last Mile and Complete Streets FY 2018 FY 2057 sg $0 $198,000 $198,000 H 
Highway Demand Based Prog. (HOV Ext. & Connect.) FY 2018 FY 2057 sg $0 $231,000 $231,000 H 
I-605 Corridor "Hot Spot" Interchange Improvements ® FY 2018 FY 2057 gc $240,000 $1,000,000 $1,240,000 H 
Modal Connectivity and Complete Streets Projects FY 2018 FY 2057 av $0 $202,000 $202,000 H 
South Bay Highway Operational Improvements FY 2018 FY 2057 sb $600,000 $500,000 $1,100,000 H 
Transit Program FY 2018 FY 2057 nc $500,000 $88,000 $588,000 T 
Transit Projects FY 2018 FY 2057 av $0 $257,100 $257,100 T 
Transportation System and Mobility Improve. Program FY 2018 FY 2057 sb $0 $350,000 $350,000 H 
North San Fernando Valley Bus Rapid Transit Improvements p,s FY 2019 FY 2023 sc $0 $180,000 $180,000 T 
Subregional Equity Program p,s FY 2018 FY 2057 sc TBD TBD $1,196,000 T/H 
Countywide BRT Projects Ph 1 (All Subregions) l,p FY 2020 FY 2022 sc $0 $50,000 $50,000 T 
Countywide BRT Projects Ph 2 (All Subregions) l,p FY 2030 FY 2032 sc $0 $50,000 $50,000 T 
Active Transportation Projects FY 2033 FY 2057 av $0 $136,500 $136,500 H 
Los Angeles Safe Routes to School Initiative FY 2033 FY 2057 cc $0 $250,000 $250,000 H 
Multimodal Connectivity Program FY 2033 FY 2057 nc $0 $239,000 $239,000 H 
Countywide BRT Projects Ph 3 (All Subregions) l,p FY 2040 FY 2042 sc $0 $50,000 $50,000 T 
Arterial Program FY 2048 FY 2057 nc $0 $726,130 $726,130 H 
BRT and 1st/Last Mile Solutions e.g. DASH FY 2048 FY 2057 cc $0 $250,000 $250,000 T 
Freeway Interchange and Operational Improvements FY 2048 FY 2057 cc $0 $195,000 $195,000 H 
Goods Movement (Improvements & RR Xing Elim.) FY 2048 FY 2057 sg $0 $33,000 $33,000 T 
Goods Movement Program FY 2048 FY 2057 nc $0 $104,000 $104,000 T 
Goods Movement Projects FY 2048 FY 2057 av $0 $81,700 $81,700 T 
Highway Efficiency Program FY 2048 FY 2057 nc $0 $128,870 $128,870 H 
Highway Efficiency Program FY 2048 FY 2057 sg $0 $534,000 $534,000 H 
Highway Efficiency, Noise Mitig. and Arterial Projects FY 2048 FY 2057 av $0 $602,800 $602,800 H 
ITS/Technology Program (Advanced Signal Tech.) FY 2048 FY 2057 sg $0 $66,000 $66,000 H 
LA Streetscape Enhance. & Great Streets Program FY 2048 FY 2057 cc $0 $450,000 $450,000 H 
Modal Connectivity Program FY 2048 FY 2057 lvm $0 $68,000 $68,000 H 
Public Transit State of Good Repair Program FY 2048 FY 2057 cc $0 $402,000 $402,000 T 
Traffic Congestion Relief and Improvement Program FY 2048 FY 2057 lvm $0 $63,000 $63,000 H 
Traffic Congestion Relief/Signal Synchronization FY 2048 FY 2057 cc $0 $50,000 $50,000 H 
Arroyo Verdugo Projects to be Determined FY 2048 FY 2057 av $0 $110,600 $110,600 H 
Countywide BRT Projects Ph 4 (All Subregions) p FY 2050 FY 2052 sc $90,000 $10,000 $100,000 T 
Countywide BRT Projects Ph 5 (All Subregions) p FY 2060 FY 2062 sc $0 $100,000 $100,000 T 
Multi-Year Subregional Programs Subtotal $1,430,000 $10,253,700 $12,879,700 

GRAND TOTAL $21,011,027 $31,243,641 $53,450,669 

Footnotes on following page. 

Los Angeles County Transportation Expenditure Plan ATTACHMENT A 
(2015 $ in thousands) Groundbreaking Sequence 

(Exceptions Noted) 

** The most recent cost estimate equals the accelerated cost. Prior year expenses included in all project costs. 



Los Angeles County Transportation Expenditure Plan ATTACHMENT A 
(2015 $ in thousands) Groundbreaking Sequence 

(Exceptions Noted) 

Footnotes: 

a. Interface station to LAX sponsored Automated People Mover includes an extended Green Line terminus and a 
consolidated bus interface for 13 Metro and Municipal bus lines. Bicycle, passenger, and other amenities are also included. 

b. Project acceleration based on high performance. 
c. Identified as a priority per the Metro Board Motion in October 2009. 
d. Project funded on LRTP schedule, per Dec. 2015 Board Policy. 
e. Consistent with the Orange Line, no sooner than 15 years after the revenue operation date of the Crenshaw/LAX project, Metro 

will consider, as transportation system performance conditions warrant, grade separation and/or undergrounding of the 
Crenshaw/LAX Line ( including the Park Mesa Heights section & Inglewood section of the project). These additional track 
enhancements, when warranted, will be eligible for funding through the decennial comprehensive review process in the Ordinance. 

f. Sepulveda Pass Ph. 1 from Orange Line/Van Nuys to Westwood includes early delivery of highway ExpressLane. 
g. Studies will be completed to evaluate a future Green Line connection to the Blue Line (city of Long Beach). 

No capital funds from the Green Line to Torrance Project will be used for the studies. 
h. I-710 South Project assumes an additional $2.8 billion of alternative revenue sources; not shown here with the cost or 

revenues for the project. The Shoemaker Bridge "Early Action" project is a priority project for these funds. 
i. Council of Government descriptions vary for the "Crenshaw Northern Extension" project. 
k. Lump sum would be provided in the first 5 years for initial capital costs only. Project sponsors responsible for ongoing 

operations & maintenance. 
l. Acceleration of Lincoln BRT project eligible as Countywide BRT Program. Any funds freed up from accelerations 

returns to Countywide BRT Program. 
m. SF Valley Transportation Improvements may include, but are not limited to, Transit Improvements, and I-210 soundwalls 

in Tujunga, Sunland, Shadow Hills and Lakeview Terrace. 
n. Critical grade separation(s) will be implemented early through Operation Shovel Ready. 
o. Conversion to LRT or HRT after FY 2067 included in expenditure plan based on ridership demand. 
p. Funds for projects identified as "sc" that are not expended are only available for other System Connectivity Capital Projects. 
q. Funding calculated based on estimated right-of-way acquisition costs; but can be repurposed for appropriate 

project uses, as approved by the MTA Board of Directors. 
r. This project could start as early as FY 2028 and open as early as FY 2037 with Public-Private Partnership delivery methods. 
s. This project will increase system connectivity in the North San Fernando Valley and the Metro Transit System. Environmental  

plan work shall begin no later than six months after passage of Measure M. To provide equivalent funding to each subregion  
other than the San Fernando Valley, the subregional equity program will be provided as early as possible to the following  
subregions in the amounts (in thousands) specified here: AV* $96,000; W* $160,000; CC* $235,000; NC* $115,000; 
LVM* $17,000; GC* $244,000; SG* $199,000; and SB* $130,000. 

* Subregion Abbreviations: 
sc = System Connectivity Projects (no subregion) nc = North County ® Indicates Measure R-related Projects 
av = Arroyo Verdugo sb = South Bay 
lvm = Las Virgenes Malibu w = Westside CY = Calendar Year 
cc = Central City Area gc = Gateway Cities FY = Fiscal Year 
sg = San Gabriel Valley sf = San Fernando Valley YOE = Year of Expenditure 

** The most recent cost estimate equals the accelerated cost. Prior year expenses included in all project costs. 



 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

   

  
  

 

      
   

  
 

........ 
I 

! 
i ,. . ..,;; 

'II 

! ; 
I 
i 
i 

■-■■-■■-■■-■■-■; ....... \. ,-■■-■■-■■-■-- '\, 

~ ~ , ', al I 
• I I I 

ft I 

/ 
/ 

<. 
/ 

( 
/ 

I 
I 

I 
I 
) 

/ 

/'J 
/ 

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 1 of 9 

Arroyo Verdugo Subregional Planning Area 

Ã2 

San Fernando Valley North County 

Burbank 

§̈¦210 

Unincorporated 
City of 

Los Unincorporated 
Angeles 

La Canada
Flintridge 

§̈¦5
Bob Hope

Airport 
Burbank 

Arroyo Verdugo San Gabriel Valley 
Subregional Planning Area 

Glendale 

Sierra 
Pasadena Madre 

Ã134 

Ã170 

City of 
Los 

Angeles Gabr
San

iel
Valley 

San Marino Subregional
Planning Area 

Ã110 

£¤101

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 
Regional Facility

0 1.25 2.5 5
Miles 

San SouthCentral City Area Gabriel Pasadena 
Ã19 

Alhambra 
Rosemead 

Page 1 of 9



 

 
 

 

  

 

 

  

 
  

 

Page 2 of 9

~--.t• 

~Metrd 

r--1 
L_ ___ _ 

:!" .... , 

'·-··"' 
' ~· L-~-~ -~ ------===========---------

~ftll■--■1- ■1-■1-■■-■■-■■-■■-,. 11•.. •n•■■•■--....-n•n•■--■--n•■■•n•n•■, 

~ .... ...,-.... ...... ~ 

_, -
i 
i 
i 

i ... 
I 
= I -■■•■■•■■•■■• 
::i ... .; ; 

-,■■-■■-1 

i i ,.J i.. 

; 
i ------- ----■-■■-■■-■■-■■-•■-■■-■■-■-' 

I 

      
   

Santa
Clarita 14 Ã North County 

Unincorported 

Unincorporated Unincorporated 

San
Fernando 

Ventura
County 

118 Ã

San Fernando Valley 

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 2 of 9 

San Fernando Subregional Planning Area 

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 
Regional Facility 

Unincor-
ted 

La 

pora 
Ã27 

§̈¦

§̈¦405 

City of
Los Ã170 

Burbank Angeles 5Burbank
Airport 

§̈¦210 

Arroyo Verdugo
Glendale 

Canada 
Flintridge 

£¤101 

Calabasas 
Unincor-
porated Las Virgenes/Malibu 

Westside City of
ÃLos Angeles Central City Area 2

H
H
idden

ills 
Ã134 

0 1.25 2.5 5
Miles 



Page 3 of 9

\ •. , 
, ....... ! 

.. 
4' .. ..., .. ,--, 

/"--"~ ; 
I ''"j-) ,.,,", 
L I ✓---- , 

...... I / ' 

- \f ! 

Metro 

,-~ 
I 

I i-- ___ __, 
I 

I _ _, ........... 
i 
""ii .... ;.., ... _ 

i i 
,;. i - -.. ~ -• • I . .,. . 

'■ ,I i : 

= 

I ~ .......... , ...... 

,---·--
' 

............... "\p ..... , 
I ••••■J : - .. 
i 
I 
i .. , ......... 

r-----1 
I I L ____ I ......... 
i ..... J 
~ 

t~ 
i 
i 

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 3 of 9 

Central City Area Subregional Planning Area 
Burbank Bob Hope Airport Arroyo La Canada San 

Flintridge Verdugo Gabriel Valle 
City of

Los 

§̈¦ 

Angeles Pasadena 
Burbank Glendale Arroyo Verdugo 

210 

5§̈¦ 

San
Fernando

Valley 

101 

Westside 
Cities West

Hollywood City of
Angel

Los 
es 

£¤ San
MarinSouth

Pasadena 

Alhambra
l 

Beverly
Hills Central City Area Union Station 

San Gabrie
Valley 

Monterey
Park 

10 

Culver 
City 

§̈¦ 

Commerce 
Vernon 

§̈¦ 

Unincorporated 
Maywood 

Huntington
Park Bell 

Bell
Gardens Cudahy Inglewood DowneSouth 

Gate 405 

Montebe Unincorporated 

LAX Ga
C

teway
ities 

El
Segundo 

§̈¦§̈¦ 
§̈¦110 

710 105 

Gardena 
Paramount 

Compton 

Lawndale 

Hawthorne Lynwood 

Sout
Bay

h City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 

0 1 2 4 Regional FacilityMiles 



I....-._ 
I I I 
l11_1 

~ ', 
',, 

i...-.,-
t 
I 

I 
I 

!ti r-----: 
L_ ____ I ......... 
: i , ....... 
~ 

n

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 4 of 9 

Gateway Cities Subregional Planning AreaUnincorporated Arcadia 
Uin corp orat edTemple City Covina 

San GabrielAlhambraÃ2 
El Monte10

101 Rosemead
§̈¦ 

£¤ Union 
Baldwi WestPark 

n 
Covina

Station
Ã110 Monterey South El

Park Monte San GabrielCity
of Los Valley LaAngeles PuenteUnicorporated

Central Montebello 
UnincorporatedCit 

VernonArea
y 

710 Ã19
§̈¦ Whittier Unicorporated 

Huntington
Park 

Maywood 

Industry
Ã60 

Commerce 

Unincorporated 
Bell Bell

Gardens 

605

Unincorporated
§̈¦ 

Cudahy 

South Downey
Gate 

Pi
i 

§¦̈5 

R 
co 

vera Ã72 La Habra
Heights 

105 

Compton 

§̈¦ Gat 
Unincorporated C 

eway
ities 

Santa Fe
Springs 

Lynwood Unincorporated 

Norwalk La Mirada Ã39 

Paramount 

Ã91 

Bellflower 

Cerritos 
Artesia

Carson Unincorporated Lakewood 

Sout
Bay

h Hawaii 
§̈¦405 

Signal
Hill 

City of 103Angeles 
Los Ã

Ã1 

Ã22Port
of Long
Beach 

Long Bea ch 

Ã47 Port
of

Ange
Los

esl 

Long
Mun

Beach
icipal

Airport Long
Beach 

an
Gardens Orange

County 

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 
Regional Facility 

0 1.25 2.5 5
Miles 

Page 4 of 9



Page 5 of 9

~Metrd 

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 5 of 9 

San Gabriel Subregional Planning Area 

Ã2 North County
Unincorporated 

La
F 

Canada 
lintridge Unincorporated Unincorporated 

Duarte 
Ã39 MonroviaSierra Pasadena Madre Glendale 

Arroyo 
Bradbury Ã134 Verdugo Ã710 

Azusa Glendora ClaremontArcadiaSan La Verne Marino Ã30 210 Los Angeles IrwindaleSouth Unincorporated 
D

San 
Ã 

Pasadena 
Ã Ã66 
110 Unincorporated imas San TempleGabrielCentral Covina 

City 
San Gabriel Valley Alhambra City

Area 10§¦̈El Monte 
Rosemead 

Baldwin Park Unincorporated West 
Mon terey

Park 
Covina South El

Mont 
Pomona 

e Unincorporated Ã71 

Unincorporated La WalPuente nu t 
San

Bernard
Coun y

no 
t
i 

Hun 

Montebello 

Industry 
Ã60 

Vernon Ã19 Diamond
Bar Ã57 

605 
ti t

Park Maywood 
Ga
§̈¦

ng on 
Commerce 

Bell 
Cudahy 

Bell Pico Ri
Gardens 

vera teway Cities 
Unincorporated 

South Gate Downey Santa Fe 
Spri 

La Habra Ã72 Whittier Heights 
5 

Lynwood 
La 

Mirada Norwalk 

§¦̈ ngs 
Orange County 

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 

0 1.25 2.5 5
Miles 



Page 6 of 9

~ .< 

~-·-

--

~Metro 

-.. .... Lr----

r, ,, 

1 
r 

r-------
..-• 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I r 

I 

I 
I 

-! 
! 
! ; 
i 
~-■--■■-■-. I Iii 

l C • ..t'"~ 
I • 

r---, 
I_ __ _! 

::i•■■-, .... .i 
w.~ 

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 6 of 9 

South Bay Subregional Planning Area 
Vernon Ã187 Unincorporated Cu

C
lver Unincorporated ity Maywood 

Ã90 
Huntington

Park BellCentral City Area 
Westside 

Cudahy 
110§̈¦Inglewood 

LAX 
Unincorporated 

Unincorporated 

South
Gate 

§̈¦ 

§̈¦105 

Unincorporated 
Paramou Gardena Gateway Cities Manhattan LawndaleBeach Compton Unincorporated 

Ã91 
Redondo
Beach Hermosa

Beach Unincorporated 
Ã1 

710 

Unincorporated Hawthorne El Segundo 
405§̈¦ 

Lynwood 

Pacific 
Ocean 

South Bay 
107 Ã

Torrance 
Unincorporated 

Carson 

Long
Beach Signal H 

Palos
Verdes
Estates 

Rolling 
Hills Estates 

Unincorporated 

Unincorporated 

Rolli
H 

ng 
illsRancho

Palos
Verdes 

Lomita City of
Los

Angeles 

213 Ã 47 Ã

Unincorporated 110 Ã Port of
Los
Angeles 

103 Ã

Port of
Long Beach 

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 

0 1 2 4 Regional FacilityMiles 



Page 7 of 9

r-----1 
I I L ____ , 

:!"'""-""! , ...... 
~ 

~Metro 

101 

Las Virgenes/
Malibu 

£¤ 
ATTACHMENT B - page 7 of 9 

Westside Subregional Planning Area Ã170 

Arroyo
VerdugoBurbank 

Ã134 

San Fernando Valley City of
Los

Angel 
405§̈¦ 

es 

§̈¦ 

Unincorporated 

27Ã City of
Los West Hollywood Ã2Angeles 

Beverly
Hills 

CentralWestside Unincorporated Cit
Area

y 
Unincorporated 

Malibu 
Ã1 

10 

Santa
Monica Ã187 

City of
Los

Ange les 

Pacifi
Ocean

c 

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 
Regional Facility 

Cu
C

lver
ity 

Ã90 
Unincorporated 

Unincorporated 

Inglewood 

LAX 

0 1 2 4
Miles 

§̈¦105 

Hawthorne 
El Segundo

South Bay 

Lawndale
Ã107 Manhattan

Beach Redondo
Beach 

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 



 

  

 

  

 

Page 8 of 9

~Metrd 

r----1 
L_ ___ _ 

:!'" ■■-■, , .... .; 

      
   

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 8 of 9 

Las Virgenes-Malibu Subregional Planning Area 

H
H
idden 

£101 San Fernando Valley ¤Ventura Unincorporated illsCounty Agoura
Hills Unincorporated Ã27 

Westlake 
Village Calabasas 

Ã23 

Las Virgenes-Malibu 
Westside 

Unincorporated 

City of
Los

Angeles 

Malibu 

Ã1 

Pacific Ocean 

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 

0 1.25 2.5 5
Miles 



Page 9 of 9

'i ··-r••11••·················································································· 
' -.J 

~ 
\ 
\ 
~ 
\ 
\ 
~ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

'=, 

\ 
\ 
~ 
\ 
\ 
~ 

----, 
I I L ___ J 

-■■-1, • I 
'-■■-.. 

~ 

®Metro 

\ 
\ ,:. 
\ 
\ 
~ 
\ 
\ 

'=, 

\ 
\ 
~ 
\ 
\ 
~ 

.............. 
I 

i 
l.~·:l 

................................................................. 

... 

i -i 
i -i 
i 
i 
:: 
! 
i 
i 

I : 

i 
I ,■■-■■-■■-■■Ill, ...... i 

;. . .. , ... ~--■-, I • , =-- ,,. •••■■■-■■-■■ ... 

SUBREGIONAL MAPS 
ATTACHMENT B - page 9 of 9 

North County Subregional Planning Area 
Kern County 

Ã138 

5 

Ventura County 

Ã126 Santa
Clarita 

Unincorporated 

Ã118 Ã2 
405§̈¦ 

§̈¦
Lancaster 

Palmdale
RegionalNorth County Airport 

Palmdale 

Ã138 Ã14 

City Boundary 
Subregional Planning Area 
Regional Facility 

0 2.5 5 10 
Miles 

Las
rgenes/Ma 

Ã27 

101£¤ 

Burbank 

San Fernando Valley 
Bob Hope 

Airport
Ã170 

§̈¦210 

Arroyo Verdugo 

Vi libu City of
Los Angeles 

Ã134 San Gabriel Valley 



I I 

Measure T Renewal Plan – 01/11/22 

Potential Funding Programs/Subprograms to Initiate Discussion – Preliminary DRAFT 

Program *1, *2 Subprogram Eligible Projects*3 

1. Community & 
Neighborhood Streets & 
Roads 

Local Neighborhood and 
Major Streets Maintenance 

Street and Road Maintenance (pavement and pothole 
repair, drainage improvements, other related 
improvements) 

Local Road Improvements Lane Widening 
Bridge Improvements 
Conversion to Higher Capacity Facility 
Gap Project 
Extension Facility 
Railroad Grade Separation Projects 
Operational Improvements (Traffic Signals, Shoulder 
Improvements, Channelization, Round-A-Bout, Passing 
Lanes, Fiber Optics, Signal Coordination, Intersection 
Modifications, Streetlights, Etc.) 
Safety Improvements (Street, road, highway, rail, other) 
Smart Corridors 
Freeway Service Patrol 

Flexible (Priority Community 
& Neighborhood 
Transportation Projects) 

Transportation Related Projects/Programs including 
streets and roads transit, bike, trail and pedestrian, 
aviation, and other transportation-related projects and 
programs) 

Regional Streets, Roads & 
Highways 

Major regional street, road and highway improvements 
– List of Prioritized Projects from the 2022 RTP/SCS and 
future RTPs 

Goal of “leveraging” State and Federal Funding 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I I 

2. Public Transit  City of Chowchilla 
 City of Madera 
 County of Madera 

Urban and Rural Fixed-Route and Demand-Response 
Transit Services/Systems: 

• Effective transit services for the general 
public, seniors, and disabled persons 

• Cost-effective solutions to improve mobility in 
unserved or underserved areas 

• Transit safety enhancements 
• Transit fare subsidies (i.e., senior/disabled 

scrip program) 
• Seamless fare media systems 
• Bus stop and signage enhancements 
• Transit support facilities 
• Fleet improvements, acquisitions, and 

conversion to clean technologies 
• Bus rapid transit 
• Light rail transit 
• Planning, studies, and grant writing 
• Marketing and outreach 

New/Innovative Public Transit Services/Systems: 
• Service optimization with transportation 

network companies (i.e., Uber; Lyft) 
• Driverless shuttles/vehicles 
• First/last-mile connections 
• Microtransit - flexible routing and scheduling 
• Shared “rides” (i.e., CalVans; Green Raiteros; 

Van Vien) 
• Shared “vehicle” rentals (i.e., Mio Car) 
• Transit signal priority 
• Dedicated bus lanes 

Measure T Renewal Plan – 01/11/22 

Potential Funding Programs/Subprograms to Initiate Discussion – Preliminary DRAFT 

Program *1, *2 Subprogram Eligible Projects*3 



I I 

Measure T Renewal Plan – 01/11/22 

Potential Funding Programs/Subprograms to Initiate Discussion – Preliminary DRAFT 

Program *1, *2 Subprogram Eligible Projects*3 

3. Active Transportation -
Bicycles, Pedestrians, 
and Trails 

Active Transportation Plans and Studies 
Bikeway, Trails, and Path Projects 
Pedestrian Facilities (Sidewalks, Other) 
Projects that Enhance School Safety 
Safety Projects:  

Protected facilities 
Traffic control devices 
Neighborhood street lighting 
Signage 
Shoulder Improvements 

Curb ramps, accessible pedestrian signals (APS), Other 
Marketing, Public Engagement, & Education Activities 

4. Clean Transportation / 
New Technologies 
(Competitive program) 

Incentives to form and join carpools 
Incentives to form and join vanpools 
Incentives to form and join agricultural worker 
vanpools/CalVans 
Incentives to encourage telecommuting 
TOD Incentive Grants 
Charging Stations, Hydrogen Fueling, CNG, etc. 
Litter Abatement Matching Funds 
Public engagement, education programs 
Clean vehicle power support facilities 
Microgrid/solar EV battery charging 
Micro mobility hubs (are designed to provide and 
identify a range of connected travel choices) 
Innovations in micro mobility (bicycles, e-bikes, electric 
scooters, electric skateboards, shared bicycles, and 
electric pedal assisted bicycles) 
Increased opportunities for telecommuting 
Future technology improvements 
Broadband infrastructure for telecommuting and 
education facility purposes 
Marketing, Public Engagement, & Education Activities 

*1 – All programs would address ADA compliance. 
*2 – All programs will provide “pass through” MT3 funds to local agencies except the “Regional Streets, Roads, and 
Highways” subprogram, which will be administered by MCTA/MCTC and could be used to prepare grant and other 
funding requirements. 
*3 – Projects listed are examples and not inclusive of all eligible projects. 



 

1 
 

Measure T Renewal Plan Goals and Objectives 
 
Goal:  Equitable access to effective transportation options for all, regardless of race, income, national 
origin, age, location, physical ability, or any other factor. 
 
Objectives: 
 Identify innovative solutions that address the transportation needs of disadvantaged 

communities, vulnerable groups, seniors, and persons with physical disabilities. 
 Avoid disproportionately high adverse environmental impacts upon low-income communities, the 

elderly, persons with disabilities or minority populations consistent with Title VI regulations. 
 
Goal:  Multimodal transportation systems that are fully accessible, encourage quality and sustainable 
growth and development, support the region’s environmental resource management strategies, reduce 
traffic congestion, improve air quality, and are responsive to the needs of current and future travelers.  
 
Objectives: 
 Support transportation improvements that provide healthy and safe routes for children to schools 

and between activity centers. 
 Encourage transportation systems that enhance walking or bicycling resulting in significant 

potential health benefits. 
 Consider how transportation policies, programs, and investment strategies affect the overall 

health of people and the environment including reduction of greenhouse gas and air quality 
emissions, and other environmental resources. 
 

Goal:  Transportation systems that stimulate, support, sustain, and enhance the movement of people and 
goods to foster economic competitiveness. 
 
Objectives: 
 Provide transportation mobility options necessary to conduct essential daily activities and support 

equitable access to the region’s assets.  
 Invest in modern regional aviation, public transit, and passenger rail systems. 
 Embrace promising and fiscally responsible transportation and new technologies that serve to 

interconnect systems and that make travel more efficient. 
 
Goal:  Transportation system coordination and intermodal connectivity to keep people and goods moving. 
 
Objectives: 
 Improve and maintain an integrated transportation network that reduces congestion and 

minimizes safety issues.  
 Strive to create a fully “seamless” intermodal transportation system by addressing critical linkages 

between modes. 



 

2 
 

 Reduce the cost of doing business by providing for the efficient movement of goods, people, and 
information.  
 

Goal:  Efficient, safe, and secure transportation systems in the Madera region. 
 
Objectives: 
 Maintain, repair, and rehabilitate the existing and future regional transportation system. 
 Support investment in multimodal safety measures to reduce traffic fatalities and incidents in the 

region.  
 
Goal:  Adequate funding to maintain and improve the transportation network. 
 
Objectives: 
 Shift investment strategies towards a variety of modes. 
 Undertake transportation investments that enhance the future economic viability and 

performance of the transportation system. 
 Combine elements of priority projects to maximize funding and provide for a well-connected and 

seamless transportation system.  
 Utilize Measure funding to leverage other local, state, and federal funds. 

 
Goal:  Reliable transportation choices through the public participation process. 

 
Objectives: 
 Conduct effective outreach to ensure fiscally sound transportation investments that result in 

improved system mobility and safety.  
 Ensure that planning for projects, which benefit disadvantaged communities and vulnerable 

groups is transparent and actively engages affected communities. 
 Identify transportation needs in disadvantaged communities through meaningful engagement in 

decision-making about project design and project implementation. 
 Provide a high level of transparency, performance review, and accountability. 

 
Goal:  Vibrant communities that are supported by sustainable transportation systems.   
 
Objectives: 
 Support a healthy environment and healthy air quality for all, regardless of race, income, national 

origin, age, location, physical ability, or any other factor. 
 Support access to areas of opportunity (jobs, education, etc.), healthy food, clinics and hospitals, 

and parks, regardless of race, income, national origin, age, location, physical ability, or any other 
factor.  

 Coordinate with Caltrans and local agencies to mitigate the potential environmental impacts of 
projects. 

 



 

1 
 

Revised:  12/7/21 
Measure T Renewal Plan 

Transportation System Priorities 
 

The priorities listed below are based on input received from Steering Committee members at the 
October 21, 2021 meeting, as well as input received from stakeholder interviews, other related 
public engagement processes to date, and the voter poll.   

 
Repairing and Maintaining Streets and Roads in Existing Neighborhoods 

A. Streets/road maintenance/rehabilitation (pavement and pothole repair, 
drainage improvements) 

B. Operational improvements (signals, shoulder widening, median improvements) 
C. Regional pavement management system (PMS)   

 
An Improved System of Active Transportation Projects (Bicycle, Pedestrian, Trails) 

A. Bike lanes, paths, and trails 
B. Pedestrian facilities (sidewalks, pedestrian overcrossings) 
C. Americans with Disability Act compliance [curb ramps, accessible pedestrian 

signals (APS) 
D. Safe Routes to School 

 
Address Local Transportation Needs - Allow the cities and the County to best decide what 

the local transportation needs are considering other available sources of funding 
and the local needs of their communities 
A. Street maintenance and pothole repair  
B. Street widening, signals, safety improvements, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, 

streetlights 
C. Enhanced Public Transit Services 
D. Active Transportation Improvements (bikeways, trails, pedestrian 

improvements) 
E. Any other transportation related projects or programs needed and specific to 

individual communities/cities 
F. Grant applications and/or technical assistance programs related to federal, 

State, and other funding to leverage Measure funding 
 

Transportation Projects that Improve Community Health and Air Quality and Reduce 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions  

A. Transit-oriented development (TOD) infrastructure (creation of compact, 
walkable, pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use communities centered around high- 
quality public transit systems 

B. Electric charging stations 
C. Congestion pricing 
D. Land use incentives to reduce VMT  



 

2 
 

E. E bikes/scooters 
F. Electric vehicles 
G. Engine or vehicle upgrades to cleaner technologies 

 
An Improved Public Transit System 

A. Enhanced urban and rural fixed-route transit services 
a. Bus rapid transit routes/systems  
b. Existing transit service improvements and extensions  
c. Automated fare box systems  
d. Fleet conversion to electric buses  
e. Reduced fares  
f. Bus stop amenities  
g. Enhanced urban and rural on-demand transit services  

i. Dial-a-ride – or services that enable passengers to book their journey 
at a convenient time and to be picked up from an agreed location 

 
New/Innovative Public Transit Services/Systems  

A. Uber/Lyft Services 
B. On-demand transit expansion 
C. Driverless shuttles 
D. First/Last-mile connections using other modes such as bikes, scooters, Uber/Lyft, 

etc. 
E. Micro Transit - Flexible routing and scheduling, which is “location based” or 

communitywide or based at a housing complex or community center  
F. Shared “rides”- Green Raiteros, Van Vien 
G. Shared “vehicles”-rentals-Mio Car 

 
Enhanced Social Service Transportation Programs 

A. Senior Scrip (discounts on taxi, Lyft, and Uber fares by purchasing scrip in 
advance) 

B. Carpools 
C. Vanpools 
D. Agriculture worker Vanpools/CALVANS 
E. On-Demand American with Disabilities (ADA) rides  
F. ADA/seniors, senior/disabled transit fare subsidy 
G. Freeway Service Patrol 

 
Improved Regional Transportation Systems 

A. Major urban and rural area street, highway, and road improvements 
B. Congestion management program/projects (programs and projects that will 

optimize the performance of the existing infrastructure   
C. Operational Improvements (interchange improvements, signalization, freeway 

ramp metering, median improvements) 
D. Goods movement improvements 



 

3 
 

E. Regional connectivity between rural and urban areas 
F. Airport improvements (projects at small city airports) 

 
New Technologies/Innovative Transportation Projects/Programs  

A. Future technological improvements 
B. Electric vehicle (EV) solar portable charging units 
C. Microgrid/solar EV battery charging  
D. Micro mobility hubs (are designed to provide and identify a range of connected 

travel choices) 
E. Innovations in micro mobility (bicycles, e-bikes, electric scooters, electric 

skateboards, shared bicycles, and electric pedal assisted bicycles) 
F. Drone delivery 
G. Increased opportunities for telecommuting 

  
 
 
 



 

MEASURE T RENEWAL PLAN SCHEDULE 
Steering Committee Meeting Dates and Agenda Items – Revised 01/10/22 

 JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE JULY 

                                                      <<< Complete Admin Draft – Expenditure Plan, Implementing Guidelines & Program Eligibility (150 Days) >>>  30-Day Public Review 
(days requires release June 
20, 2022) 
 

 MCTA Board Approval – 
July 20, 2022 

 Madera BOS Ballot 
Approval – July or August 
2022 

 Submit Ballot Language to 
Elections Office by August 
12, 2022 

STEERING COMMITTEE 
MEETING DATES 

 
Jan 20 

Feb 3, 10, or 24 
Feb 17 

Mar 3, 10, 24, or 31 
Mar 17 

Apr 7, 14, or 28 
Apr 21 

May 5, 12, or 26 
May 19 

Jun 2, 9, 23, or 30 
Jun 16 

 

STEERING COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEMS 

 Finalize Measure T 
Goals & Objectives 

 Finalize Measure T 
Renewal Plan Priorities 

 Measure T Duration 
Alternatives 

 Initiate Development of 
Measure T Renewal 
Programs  

 Community 
Engagement Status 
 

 Community Engagement 
Status 

 Continued Development 
of Measure T Renewal 
Programs 

 Policy & Priority 
Discussions 

 Vision for the State 
Highway System 

 General Plan & Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) 
considerations 

 Discussion of metric 
alternatives to establish 
the allocation of Measure 
T Program funding to local 
agencies  

 
 Airport Eligibility 
 What the focus should be 

for the Clean 
Transportation & 
Environmental Program 

 Public Transit 
Alternatives– Fixed, Flex, 
Micro, etc. 

 Senior Scrip/Voucher 
Program 

 Community Engagement 
Status 

 Final Measure T Renewal 
Programs 

 Review Polling Process 
 
 

 Community 
Engagement Status 

 Citizen Oversight 
Committee (COC) 
Structure 

 Initiate Discussion of 
Measure T Renewal 
Funding Allocations to 
Renewal Programs 

 
 Community 

Engagement Status 
 Final Measure T 

Renewal Funding 
Allocations to Renewal 
Programs  

 Initiate Discussion of 
Regional Project 
Priorities  
 

 Community 
Engagement Status 

 Review Poll Results 
 Final Regional Project 

Priorities  
 Initiate Discussion of 

Implementation 
Guidelines 

 
 Community 

Engagement Status 
 Continue Development 

of Implementation 
Guidelines 
 

 

 Community 
Engagement Status 

 Continue Development 
of Implementation 
Guidelines 

 
 Community 

Engagement Status 
 Final Implementation 

Guidelines 
 Initiate Development 

of the Draft Measure T 
Renewal Plan  

 

 Continue Development 
of the Draft Measure T 
Renewal Plan  

 
 Final Draft Measure T 

Renewal Plan  
 Recommend Approval 

of the Draft Measure T 
Renewal Plan  

 

 Presentation to MCTA 
Board for Approval 

 Presentation to Madera 
BOS to approve 
placement on the 
November 2022 ballot 


	1. Agenda
	2. Meeting Minutes 12-16-21
	3. Sales Tax Duration Alternative
	4. 2017-MeasureM-ordinance-with-expenditure-plan 
	5. Measure T Renewal Plan Programs 
	6. Renewal Plan Goals and Objectives 
	7. SC Program Priorities 011122 GV08 (R)
	8. Renewal Plan Schedule and SC Meeting Date and Agenda Items 



Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		Agenda Packet January 11, 2022.pdf




		Report created by: 

		Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst, sandy@maderactc.org

		Organization: 

		Madera County Transportation Commission




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 0

		Passed: 30

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		MT3 SC Meeting No. 4 Minutes 121621 011122 GV05 (R).pdf




		Report created by: 

		Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst, sandy@maderactc.org

		Organization: 

		Madera County Transportation Commission




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 0

		Passed: 30

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		MT3 Duration Issues 011322 GV08 (R).pdf




		Report created by: 

		Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst, sandy@maderactc.org

		Organization: 

		Madera County Transportation Commission




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 0

		Passed: 30

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		MT3 - Measure T Renewal Plan Programs 011122 GV14.pdf




		Report created by: 

		Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst, sandy@maderactc.org

		Organization: 

		Madera County Transportation Commission




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found problems which may prevent the document from being fully accessible.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 0

		Passed: 27

		Failed: 3




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Failed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Failed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Failed		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		MT3 - Renewal Plan Goals and Objectives 011122 GV08.pdf




		Report created by: 

		Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst, sandy@maderactc.org

		Organization: 

		Madera County Transportation Commission




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 0

		Passed: 30

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		MT3 - SC Program Priorities 011122 GV08.pdf




		Report created by: 

		Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst, sandy@maderactc.org

		Organization: 

		Madera County Transportation Commission




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 0

		Passed: 30

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top


Accessibility Report


		Filename: 

		MT3 Renewal Plan Schedule and SC Meeting Date and Agenda Items 011122 GV12(R).pdf




		Report created by: 

		Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst, sandy@maderactc.org

		Organization: 

		Madera County Transportation Commission




 [Personal and organization information from the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found no problems in this document.


		Needs manual check: 2

		Passed manually: 0

		Failed manually: 0

		Skipped: 0

		Passed: 30

		Failed: 0




Detailed Report


		Document



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set

		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF

		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF

		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order

		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified

		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar

		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents

		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast

		Page Content



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged

		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged

		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order

		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided

		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged

		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker

		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts

		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses

		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive

		Forms



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged

		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description

		Alternate Text



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text

		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read

		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content

		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation

		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text

		Tables



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot

		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR

		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers

		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column

		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary

		Lists



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L

		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI

		Headings



		Rule Name		Status		Description

		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting






Back to Top
